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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: My name is Eva

          3  Moskowitz, I Chair the Education Committee. This is

          4  a joint hearing with the Health Committee, chaired

          5  by Councilwoman Quinn. It's always a lot of fun and

          6  always worthwhile to do joint hearings with Council

          7  Member Quinn, so I appreciate this opportunity to

          8  work on this joint hearing.

          9                 This is a combined oversight hearing

         10  on the general topic of nutrition and fitness, and

         11  more specifically it's a hearing on a bill authored

         12  by my colleague David Yassky and Council Member

         13  Quinn, commonly known as "The Junk Food Bill." And

         14  really, the origins of our concern stem from what I

         15  think has to be called an epidemic of childhood

         16  obesity and juvenile diabetes, and our concern that

         17  kids are not necessarily eating right and getting

         18  adequate physical fitness.

         19                 This clearly affects learning in a

         20  whole host of ways.

         21                 So, I look forward to hearing from

         22  the Department of Education, as well as the

         23  advocates, on how to address this problem. Obviously

         24  junk food and vending machines are one portion of

         25  this problem. I am in particular very, very
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          2  concerned about what has happened to physical

          3  education, and the Education Committee is going to

          4  be having an additional hearing on that topic.

          5  Because if we don't see nutrition and physical

          6  education as part and parcel of a solution, we're

          7  not really going to address the larger problem.

          8                 So, thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I'm

         10  Christine Quinn, the Chair of the Health Committee.

         11  As Chairperson Moskowitz said, this is a joint

         12  hearing with our two Committees. We are, as everyone

         13  is aware, still in budget discussions, so some of

         14  our colleagues will be running probably literally

         15  back and forth across the street, so we are

         16  expecting more of our Committee members in the near

         17  future.

         18                 You know, as the Chairperson said,

         19  this is both an oversight hearing on the state of

         20  nutrition in our public schools, our food programs,

         21  what we're doing to make sure kids who spend the

         22  bulk of their day during the school year in schools

         23  to make sure that they get the most nutritious food

         24  possible, while they're in schools under the care of

         25  the Department of Education, and also to look at a
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          2  particular piece of legislation, which myself and

          3  Council Member Yassky and the other sponsors of the

          4  bill believe will be helpful in enhancing nutrition

          5  in our schools, and also helpful in addressing the

          6  crisis of childhood obesity in this City, State and

          7  country. You know, depending on how obesity is

          8  defined, studies indicate that 15 to 33 percent of

          9  American children are considered to be obese.

         10                 Recent CDC studies have said that in

         11  New York City almost 20 percent of third graders,

         12  and 21 percent of sixth graders were obese. And as

         13  we all know, obesity leads to pediatric

         14  hypertension, type-2 diabetes, sleep apnea and a

         15  range of social and psychological problems, and

         16  obese children are more likely to become obese

         17  adults and the range of health problems, which are

         18  associated with obesity and adulthood are long and

         19  well known.

         20                 You know, there is no quick fix,

         21  unfortunately, for addressing childhood obesity, and

         22  the problems that go along with it. It's a

         23  complicated public health issue. But I believe

         24  today's oversight hearing, which we'll seek to get a

         25  better handle on what the Department of Education is
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          2  now planning to do as it relates to nutrition in our

          3  school and an exploration of Intro. 316 as a

          4  possible additional help by getting junk food out of

          5  vending machines in school, limiting children's

          6  access to it, and also sending a message to kids

          7  that that's not what they should be eating. You

          8  know, hopefully this all together will be a step in

          9  the right direction, another attempt to get the more

         10  attention focused and more weapons in our arsenal

         11  against childhood obesity and the equated health

         12  problems.

         13                 We've been joined, she's trying to

         14  work her way around the massive standing room only

         15  crowd, by Councilwoman Helen Sears, who is a member

         16  of the Health Committee.

         17                 We've also been joined by Councilman

         18  David Yassky, who we said is the prime sponsor of

         19  Intro. 316, the Junk Food and Soda-Free Act. And I

         20  don't know, Council Member Yassky, if you want to

         21  make a statement?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         23  Chairs Moskowitz and Quinn, for holding this

         24  hearing.

         25                 It took me a lot to find it, believe
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          2  it or not, I want to City Hall, I went to 14th

          3  Floor, but having made it here, I just want to thank

          4  you for holding this hearing on what I believe is a

          5  very, very important topic. What I said outside is,

          6  childhood obesity, it's not just the topic for late

          7  night humor, although it may be that, but it's also

          8  an epidemic in public health.

          9                 We have seen rates of childhood

         10  obesity double in the last ten years, and we know

         11  for a fact that overweight children will grow, most

         12  likely, into overweight adults, and then overweight

         13  adults suffer from a variety of health problems at

         14  far greater rates than adults within the normal

         15  health ranges, and weight ranges.

         16                 So, what we need to do is attack this

         17  problem at the source, and unfortunately, I fear

         18  that what we're doing is not attacking the problem,

         19  but actually aiding and abetting, by continuing to

         20  shove candy and soda at children while they're at

         21  school during the school day. And I know that the

         22  Administration has been working diligently on this.

         23  I look forward to hearing their testimony, and I

         24  know that they have prepared some very significant

         25  changes.
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          2                 I believe that we should do nothing

          3  less than immediately starting September when the

          4  schools reopen, remove candy, junk food, soda, from

          5  vending machines in schools.

          6                 You know, we can't be on the one hand

          7  telling children here is how to eat healthy, here

          8  are healthy meals that we prepared for you, and

          9  meals in the cafeterias are fairly good. They could

         10  be better. I know the Department is working on

         11  making them even better, but they are reasonably

         12  good, but then at the same time saying, you know,

         13  ignore those healthy meals, and go out and buy a bag

         14  of cookies and a soda from the vending machines.

         15                 And it reminds me of the cigarette

         16  ads you see where you've got the warning that says

         17  smoking may cause cancer, but then a great big

         18  picture of how cool it is and how great it would be

         19  to smoke. And I fear that's what we're doing with

         20  vending machines.

         21                 I believe this bill is a necessity. I

         22  know that the Department is taking very significant

         23  steps on its own, but there is nothing like a

         24  statute with the force of law to get the job done,

         25  particularly here where there's a real history of

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  noncompliance by individual schools, even with court

          3  orders. There's a history of decrees from the

          4  Chancellor's Office not necessarily being followed

          5  throughout the system. I believe that we do need a

          6  statutory solution here.

          7                 So, again, Chair Moskowitz, Chair

          8  Quinn, thank you very much for your leadership here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         10  Council Member Yassky.

         11                 We're going to begin with our first

         12  panel. Before we do so, I just have one announcement

         13  to make about logistics.

         14                 We have a Stated Council Meeting

         15  today, and when we planned this hearing we thought

         16  the budget would be done. The budget is not done and

         17  there are very, very important meetings and

         18  discussions going on. Depending on how we're moving

         19  through our panels, and depending on what time the

         20  Stated Council actually starts, we sometimes joke a

         21  little bit about Council time, the time on the

         22  schedule is not necessarily the time that it starts,

         23  so we will go as long as we can but we may have to

         24  abbreviate things unexpectedly. So I wanted to let

         25  everyone know and apologize in advance for that.
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          2                 Oh, yes, I'm sorry. Council Member

          3  Leroy Comrie from Queens, a member of the Education

          4  Committee.

          5                 We're going to begin with the

          6  Department of Education and Department of Health,

          7  Marty Oestreicher and Roger Platt.

          8                 Welcome, and please state your name

          9  and affiliation for the record.

         10                 The light has to be off for the

         11  microphone to be on. It's a little

         12  counter-intuitive.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: I'm Marty

         14  Oestreicher. I'm the Chief Executive of the Office

         15  of School Support Services.

         16                 Thank you, Chairwoman Moskowitz,

         17  Chairwoman Quinn, and members of the Education and

         18  Health Committees for inviting me to testify

         19  regarding this proposed legislation.

         20                 The Department of Education's Office

         21  of School, Food and Nutritional Services is

         22  reviewing all aspects of its operations to create a

         23  wholesome, exciting, appealing dining experience for

         24  children in our schools, with the goal of increasing

         25  breakfast and lunch participation.
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          2                 A critical component of this effort

          3  is the upgrading of our nutritional standards, both

          4  in the cafeterias and in the entire school building.

          5                 Let me begin by describing our

          6  programs to enhance the nutritional value of the

          7  meals we serve.

          8                 We firmly believe that good nutrition

          9  plays an essential role in helping development, and

         10  helps young people do well in school.

         11                 Childhood obesity is at epidemic

         12  levels throughout the United States, and that can

         13  create problems related to school performance.

         14                 We believe, we, and the Department of

         15  Education, can play an important but not exclusive

         16  role in addressing this problem.

         17                 We serve over 800,000 meals per day

         18  in our schools. More meals are served in New York

         19  City schools than any other school system.

         20                 Our food service program is

         21  noteworthy for its scrupulous attention to food

         22  safety issues and adherence to the United States

         23  Department of Agriculture, Nutrition Standards.

         24                 All meals served as part of the

         25  national school lunch program must meet minimal
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          2  nutritional guidelines established by the US

          3  Department of Agriculture. The guidelines deal

          4  primarily with fat content.

          5                 In February, the Office of School,

          6  Food and Nutrition Services convened a task force

          7  consisting of the Department of Education's

          8  physician, our unit's nutritionist and senior

          9  operating personnel, representatives from food

         10  advocacy groups, nutritional experts from the

         11  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene to evaluate

         12  the current standards and develop a program to raise

         13  the bar on nutrition.

         14                 The result was a comprehensive set of

         15  higher nutritional standards that we believe present

         16  an aggressive, yet balanced realistic strategy for

         17  achieving our goals to support the health and

         18  academic preparedness of our school children.

         19                 While I will not go into detail

         20  regarding every aspect of the program, I would like

         21  to highlight some of the major components that will

         22  provide a sample of the forthcoming enhancements.

         23                 First, USDA guidelines are currently

         24  averaged over a five-day period. For example, over

         25  that period, the fat percentage of total calories
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          2  cannot exceed 30 percent.

          3                 Under the guidelines, New York City

          4  Department of Education guidelines, this standard

          5  will be met on a daily basis within three to five

          6  years.

          7                 We will accomplish this by

          8  eliminating products in the top ten percent of the

          9  worst outliers, and work with manufacturers to

         10  reformulate products so that the more aggressive

         11  standards can be met.

         12                 Secondly, we'll gradually increase

         13  the use of wheat and whole wheat breads. For

         14  example, our sliced bread is currently 60 percent

         15  white and 40 percent whole grain. That split will

         16  change to 50/50, as next year, and will gradually

         17  increase over the coming years.

         18                 We plan to expand the use of fresh

         19  and frozen vegetables from the current three days

         20  per week to five days per week, while decreasing the

         21  use of canned vegetables.

         22                 We will increase the service of fresh

         23  fruit from the current three days per week to five

         24  days per week. We'll be serving greater amounts of

         25  fish and plant-based products. We'll apply standard
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          2  serving size maximums for snack items.

          3                 Beverages will be limited to 100

          4  percent juice, milk and water. We'll decrease the

          5  number of mayonnaise-based salads offered daily from

          6  three to one, and replace them with fresh

          7  vegetables. And reduce the amount of highly

          8  processed foods.

          9                 These items represent only a portion

         10  of the enhancements we plan to make. As I noted,

         11  some will be implemented this coming school year and

         12  others will be phased in over a three- to five-year

         13  period.

         14                 I can report that we have already

         15  worked with manufacturers to reformulate products so

         16  that some of the outliers are eliminated.

         17                 This has enabled us to begin to

         18  attain our daily macro nutrient and micro nutrient

         19  standards.

         20                 Menu formulation is the basic means

         21  of ensuring that our children receive the right mix

         22  of foods to ensure that nutritional guidelines are

         23  met.

         24                 The menus are currently prepared by

         25  the Department's nutritionists and senior operating
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          2  staff. These experienced school food professionals

          3  are very knowledgeable about the various food items

          4  and their nutritional values. With that knowledge,

          5  they prepare the right mix of items served to our

          6  children every day.

          7                 We also believe that parents should

          8  be aware of what we are serving the children.

          9                 For some time we have posted our

         10  daily menus on our website. Parents have been able

         11  to access their menus by entering their child's

         12  school, and will remind you that daily menus are not

         13  identical throughout the entire City.

         14                 This September you could look up an

         15  item's nutritional content by entering the name of

         16  the item. At the end of the school year we will make

         17  it easier for parents so that they will only have to

         18  click on the food item as it appears on the menu and

         19  the nutritional content will be displayed.

         20                 Menus are posted in school dining

         21  rooms. For those parents without Internet access,

         22  requests for nutritional information can be

         23  forwarded to the school food services manager.

         24                 Now I'd like to turn to the issue of

         25  vending machines and school store sales.
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          2                 A key component of our nutritional

          3  program is the emphasis on food and drink sold

          4  within the entire school building, not merely in the

          5  lunchroom.

          6                 This means the same nutritional

          7  standards will be applied in vending machines,

          8  school stores or any other outlet.

          9                 Currently schools or districts enter

         10  into their own agreements with vending machine

         11  businesses. This unregulated activity has made it

         12  difficult to enforce existing regulations regarding

         13  nutrition, let alone the enhanced standards we seek

         14  to effectuate.

         15                 The Chancellor has approved new

         16  regulations governing the sale of food items in our

         17  schools.

         18                 It mandates a sweeping overhaul of

         19  vending machine usage, and here are some of the

         20  highlights.

         21                 Schools seeking to use vending

         22  machines will have to use a Department of Education

         23  Central Contract that is currently being developed.

         24  Schools will be responsible for removing, closing or

         25  phasing out all vending machines not ordered from
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          2  the contract.

          3                 Only approved foods that meet our

          4  snack nutritional content standards can be sold to

          5  vending machines or school stores.

          6                 The vendor will be provided a list of

          7  acceptable items and schools must make their vending

          8  machine choices from that list.

          9                 Schools may not sell food outside the

         10  school program during prohibited hours when the

         11  lunchroom is serving breakfast and lunch.

         12                 Under the central contract vending

         13  machines will have timers that will prevent their

         14  usage during these hours.

         15                 We recognize the role food plays in

         16  school fundraising efforts. Occasional fundraising

         17  sales will be permitted to offer items that do not

         18  conform to the nutritional guidelines. However,

         19  items defined by the US Department of Agriculture as

         20  minimally nutritious will not be allowed for sale in

         21  our schools before the end of the last lunch period.

         22  Examples of such items are soda, chewing gum and

         23  candy.

         24                 Vending machines have been an

         25  important component of school-based revenues. Under

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  the regulations that will not change as schools will

          3  continue to retain revenues from the machines.

          4                 Principals and food service managers

          5  will work together to ensure compliance with these

          6  regulations. Willful failure on the part of the

          7  school may result in a directive to stop use of

          8  vending machines for a period of time, or an order

          9  to remove them from the school all together.

         10                 The vendor will face significant

         11  penalties, should it be found to supply school

         12  vending machines with items not included on the

         13  approved list of snack items.

         14                 We want to emphasize that all the

         15  efforts we have outlined above have been conducted

         16  in close consultation with the Department of Health

         17  and Mental Hygiene.

         18                 We will of course continue to work

         19  closely with the Department, especially Dr. Platt,

         20  who is assigned to both departments.  However, the

         21  promulgation for school food and nutrition is solely

         22  the responsibility of the Department of Education we

         23  believe should reside there.

         24                 In this position we take issue with

         25  Section 17-904 of the proposed bill that assigns
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          2  this responsibility to the Department of Health and

          3  Mental Hygiene.

          4                 We believe the Chancellor's

          5  regulations cover all of the ground in the proposed

          6  legislation.

          7                 In fact, the regulations are actually

          8  more aggressive as they do not grandfather vending

          9  machine agreements that schools have entered into

         10  prior to the promulgation of the regulations that's

         11  called for in this bill.

         12                 Thank you, and I am happy to take

         13  your questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I think it

         15  would make more sense to hear from Dr. Platt, and

         16  then we'll go to questions. Thank you.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PLATT: Good

         18  morning. I am Dr. Roger Platt, Assistant

         19  Commissioner in the Bureau of School Health in the

         20  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         21                 I am also Director of the Office of

         22  School Health, the newly integrated School Health

         23  Program of DOHMH and the Department of Education.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me just

         25  one second.
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          2                 Do we have copies of your testimony?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PLATT: Thank

          4  you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed

          5  legislation regarding junk food and soda in New York

          6  City public schools.

          7                 Let me begin with some background on

          8  the new school health initiative.

          9                 The Office of School Health is a

         10  joint program of the Department of Education and the

         11  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         12                 I was appointed in February to

         13  oversee this new effort to address the health of our

         14  school children. We are developing a comprehensive

         15  model of school health, based on the Center for

         16  Disease Control framework.

         17                 This model includes eight interactive

         18  components: Health education, physical education,

         19  health services, nutrition services, counseling,

         20  psychological and social services, healthy school

         21  environment, health promotion for staff and family

         22  community involvement.

         23                 We are in a unique position to

         24  address these issues in New York City, given our

         25  joint effort by two agencies.

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2                 School health is actively

          3  participating in DOE's efforts to improve nutrition

          4  and physical activity in schools, which are critical

          5  components in our efforts to address child obesity

          6  in New York City.

          7                 Primary responsibility for some of

          8  the components of the CDC model rest with the

          9  Department of Education. Others sit with the

         10  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         11                 My role is to bring the efforts of

         12  these two agencies together to ensure that the

         13  health needs of children in schools are met.

         14                 I applaud the Committee for

         15  addressing the important issue of nutrition in our

         16  schools. Childhood obesity has become a national

         17  epidemic and is of particular concern in large urban

         18  areas such as New York City.

         19                 Research on childhood overweight

         20  indicates that multiple interventions are necessary

         21  and include improved nutrition that is eating foods

         22  lower in fat and total calories and increased

         23  physical activity.

         24                 DOHMH recently surveyed heights and

         25  weights in New York City elementary schools, and the
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          2  results will be available shortly.

          3                 The Department of Health and Mental

          4  Hygiene is currently developing a number of projects

          5  in areas identified as high risk, based on key

          6  health indicators measured by our Community Health

          7  Survey, including adult obesity.

          8                 Programs in Bushwick, East Harlem and

          9  the South Bronx are designed to improve physical

         10  activity in schools, strengthen links between school

         11  nurses and local physicians, computerize school

         12  health records and offer improved nutrition

         13  education to children.

         14                 All of these projects have the

         15  potential to affect childhood over weight.

         16                 We are working with other City

         17  agencies, including the Department of Education,

         18  Health and Hospitals Corporation, Medical Health

         19  Research Association and the Department of Parks and

         20  Recreation as part of an interagency working group

         21  on obesity in New York City.

         22                 The group is sharing information and

         23  planning new programs. Our first effort is a summer

         24  obesity prevention program in local city parks.

         25                 Health providers will be asked to
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          2  refer at-risk children and their families to

          3  physical activity programs.

          4                 We are also working with the

          5  Department of Youth and Community Development's

          6  Interagency Coordinating Council's Subcommittee on

          7  Health, which has identified obesity as a key issue.

          8                 The Subcommittee is exploring ways to

          9  link agencies around obesity prevention.

         10                 The goal of a proposed legislation to

         11  reduce junk food consumption in schools has merit.

         12  However, vending machines are only one source of

         13  food in our schools. The new Comprehensive School

         14  Health Policy discussed here today deals with all

         15  aspects of food consumption, including the role of

         16  vending machines.

         17                 We support this Department of

         18  Education Initiative, which exceeds the scope of

         19  this legislation and ensures that healthy and

         20  nutritious food will be available to all children at

         21  all times that food is served in schools.

         22                 Given this new Department of

         23  Education Policy, we do not believe the school

         24  nutrition legislation is needed at this time. Thank

         25  you for your attention.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          3                 W have been joined by Council Member

          4  Oddo. And Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

          5  Bronx.

          6                 I will start with some questions.

          7  First, the 800,000 meals a day, that stat that you

          8  cited, does that include the federal subsidy for

          9  snack programs, or is that meals? What constitutes a

         10  meal?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: That would be meals

         12  we serve about 44,000 snacks a day in addition, so

         13  if you included snacks it would be 844,000.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So that

         15  includes lunch and breakfast?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER: Lunch and breakfast.

         17  There's a very limited supper program, but it's

         18  primarily lunch and breakfast.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can you tell

         20  me how -- I mean, that's a lot of meals, 800,000

         21  meals. That's a lot of meals; can you tell me how

         22  you know what kids actually eat from those meals?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: Just on the evidence

         24  of our food service managers and the people in our

         25  kitchen staff, we have not done any service to see
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          2  what kids actually eat.

          3                 I will say, though, that before we

          4  introduce products into the system, we do test them

          5  among students, and it's a continuous process in

          6  faculty, a very important process now, as we

          7  reformulate the components of these products. We

          8  test them at all levels, high school, elementary and

          9  junior high school, and we see if we get good grades

         10  from the students, and generally if we don't, we

         11  will not introduce them. So, we try to get items

         12  that kids have found to be somewhat appetizing in

         13  the tests, but I can't say we've done any formal

         14  monitoring of kids eat or not eat --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So there's no

         16  kind of exit survey, as it were, to find out what

         17  kids have actually eaten?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: You mentioned

         20  that one of the goals is a wholesome, if I'm quoting

         21  you correctly, a wholesome, exciting dining

         22  experience. This bears very little relationship to

         23  what I know about school lunchrooms, and I was

         24  wondering if you could, particularly with the

         25  absence of school aids, so the dining experience,
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          2  which is quite a euphemism, is about to get worse;

          3  could you say something about the smell of

          4  lunchrooms? Let's start there. What is that smell?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER: Which smell are you

          6  referring to? I've been to many lunchrooms, I have

          7  not noticed any bad smells emanating from them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, let me

          9  get this right. So, you've never noticed a bad smell

         10  in lunchrooms?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: I have not noticed

         12  anything that was that harmful that --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I wasn't

         14  speaking harmful. I survived public school in New

         15  York City, so I don't think we're talking about

         16  harm, but nauseating. You've never experienced that

         17  queasiness from the odor in lunchrooms?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER: I have not gotten

         19  queasy from any of the odors in lunchrooms I've been

         20  to.

         21                 I mean, what you may have smelled is

         22  some cleaning, they clean after breakfast, and

         23  perhaps some of the cleaning --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes. It's like

         25  a combination of cleaning, disinfectant and food.
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          2  It's a very particular smell. I've noticed it in

          3  every lunchroom I've ever gone into; you've never

          4  noticed it?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER: No.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sorry to harp

          7  on that point. Okay.

          8                 Let me ask you about a broader

          9  question. Can you say something about how you

         10  believe you change eating habits? What's your theory

         11  about how you change eating habits, and how does

         12  that --

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, we just will

         14  try to model good food in our cafeteria. We have the

         15  students there for two meals a day, and as they see

         16  the type of food we offer and hopefully there will

         17  be some nutritional, sometimes we work with the

         18  school administration, do some of the nutritional

         19  talks with the students, try and encourage more kids

         20  to come to the lunchroom, and hopefully we can model

         21  good habits, they find that this food is good and

         22  it's nourishing at the same time. We would hope that

         23  what they learn from our schools will carry forward

         24  outside the school.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So it's
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          2  primarily modeling, is your theory of how you change

          3  your eating habits? Would that be accurate?

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: At least on our end.

          5  I don't know if the Department of Health has any

          6  programs, in terms of nutrition on that end, but we

          7  feel, yes, if we could model good food and good

          8  eating behavior in the school, that could possibly

          9  carry forward.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I would just

         11  say in conclusion I would think that it's got to be

         12  more complicated than that.

         13                 I mean, I've been, I must confess,

         14  I've been somewhat unsuccessful with my own child in

         15  getting him to eat vegetables. And I model every

         16  night and he refuses to eat. So, modeling isn't

         17  working in my household. And it's quite important to

         18  me that he eat well, so I wonder whether we don't

         19  need a different theory here or pedagogy or method

         20  or something, because I don't think just a yes works

         21  exactly.

         22                 Let me now defer to Chairwoman Chris

         23  Quinn. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Just,

         25  one, let me follow up on the final question that

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  Chairperson Moskowitz just asked about the modeling.

          3                 To what degree do you think that the

          4  existence of competitive foods in the schools

          5  undercuts your ability to have kids eat nutritious

          6  food and follow kind of your models, if you will? I

          7  mean, that concept of competitive food being what I

          8  learned three days ago so then we'll throw it

          9  around, like I'm a vast nutritional expert on this

         10  subject?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: Referring to vending

         12  machines?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right. So that

         14  there's something else in vending machines or

         15  somewhere else that competes with what's on your --

         16  that is competing with what's on your tray you'll go

         17  to that. So how much does that undercut the

         18  modeling?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: That's could

         20  undercut, which is why we are going to strictly

         21  enforce the rules about when those machines can be

         22  utilized.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm guess I'm

         24  looking for, if you have any more sense of that.

         25  What's your experience with whether it has, whether
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          2  schools that, you know, do you have any more sense

          3  of the impacts that vending machines have on your

          4  ability to get kids to follow the lead, so-to-speak,

          5  of the schools, or to follow the modeling behavior?

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER: I don't have any

          7  formal studies that we would show, but we would

          8  believe anecdotally that there is clearly

          9  relationship, because vending machines are open at

         10  the same time that the cafeterias are open and they

         11  have more tempting foods, that is competition and

         12  it's not good competition, and that's why the

         13  regulations, which are federal regulations, about

         14  when those machines can be opened, I'm sure that was

         15  the reason why those regulations were promulgated,

         16  so you cannot have that competition.

         17                 We recognize that it is a competitive

         18  force. I can't give you the specific studies that

         19  were done, but it's clear that it is, and that's why

         20  we want to curb its use during those times.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I want to come

         22  back to vending machines in a second, but I want to

         23  go to something else for a second.

         24                 On the bottom of page one of your

         25  testimony, on the top of page two, you talk about
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          2  "under the New York City DOE guidelines this

          3  standard will be met on a daily basis, in three to

          4  five years we will accomplish this by eliminating

          5  the products in the top ten percent of most outliers

          6  and work with manufacturers to reformulate products

          7  so that the most aggressive standards can be met."

          8                 As I indicated, I have a vast

          9  nutritional knowledge having learned competitive

         10  food concept a couple of days ago, I don't

         11  completely understand that, so if you could explain

         12  that a little bit?

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, right now the

         14  Department of Agriculture standards call for an

         15  average, over a five-day average you can't have more

         16  than let's say 30 percent of your caloric intake in

         17  fats, but you can be up in certain days and down in

         18  other days.

         19                 So, what we want to do is get it to

         20  every day is at the 30 percent or even less. So,

         21  what you have to do is you have to knock some of the

         22  products out, because you can't have some products

         23  that will get up up at the 40 percent and the menu

         24  the next day get you down to 20, you've got to meet

         25  that every day.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So the words

          3   "outliers" means the foods that are --

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: That would be the

          5  highest, the higher fat content foods.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          7                 So, you're goal is to then reduce by

          8  ten percent the least nutritious or fattiest that

          9  you're serving?

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, not

         11  necessarily reduced by ten percent, but you get it

         12  done on a daily basis, every day the fat content

         13  will be 30 percent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, I

         15  misread it. So, you're going to eliminate all of the

         16  products that are in the top ten worst outliers. So

         17  the top ten percent of the worst food will be taken

         18  off of the school --

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Right, so we can get

         20  to meet that standard.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And tell me a

         22  little bit more about what work you have done or are

         23  going to do with your manufacturers to get them to

         24  help you in that? And how long are you going to kind

         25  of go down the road of trying to get manufacturers
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          2  to switch how they do things? You know, how many

          3  chances are you going to give them, so-to-speak,

          4  before you switch and go a different path, I guess

          5  to a different manufacturer?

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, it will be in

          7  our specs. I mean, we devise the specs, they have to

          8  provide the food that we call for on our specs, as

          9  part of the contract.

         10                 But we will work with them, and it's

         11  a process, but because of our size and amount of

         12  business we provide we do have leverage in terms of

         13  making them make products almost specifically for us

         14  and to meet our standards. And we've already

         15  started, I've got these specific products, but I

         16  know we've worked on certain products already where

         17  we've gone back and forth, and like I said, the

         18  process is to work with them, tell them the

         19  standards, they send it to us. We have our

         20  nutritionists retest it, and then if it meets our

         21  standards, in terms of nutritional content, we will

         22  then take it out in the field, so to speak, and run

         23  it through some taste tests. If it meets our

         24  nutritional content but it's a bomb outside, we can

         25  go back and start working with them and see if they
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          2  can add the taste. I couldn't tell you exactly what

          3  they do, you know, whatever, but it still has to

          4  meet the content and meet the taste standards, the

          5  taste standards of those set by our surveys.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So the process to

          7  kind of meet the first two things in your outline

          8  which is the USDA guidelines, you know, getting

          9  those a more daily basis, and et cetera, take me

         10  through the time frame between now, the end of June

         11  and September. What weeks are the meetings with the

         12  manufacturers going to be and when are they supposed

         13  to have the new products to use? Are you going to

         14  taste test in summer school? Are you going to call

         15  some kids in early to do the taste tests? When does

         16  that happen and then how much time is there to

         17  rework the food, if it, you know, isn't --

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER: I think -- I'm sorry

         19  to interrupt.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay.

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER: We've already

         22  selected some of the items this year.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: For the year

         24  coming?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER: For the year coming.
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          2  And we've already worked on some of those items. But

          3  it's a continual process, we can do that over the

          4  course of the year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So, by September

          6  you think you will have, you know, all, one, two,

          7  three, four, five -- eight or nine of these points

          8  in place?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER: We're outlying some

         10  of the product, but to get down to 30 percent every

         11  day, there's a number of items that you'd have to

         12  work on, and, you know, we started that process. But

         13  it's not just a couple of items, there are a bunch

         14  of them and it's a process.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Come September,

         16  what is the things that we will see that are

         17  different in schools as it relates to food and

         18  nutrition?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, in terms of

         20  the products, and I could give you the list of some

         21  products. It would probably be transparent to the

         22  students in terms of the content of the product.

         23  It's probably the same thing they've had on the menu

         24  before, they just won't notice that the nutritional

         25  standards are different, hopefully they won't
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          2  notice, that's the idea, or if they don't like the

          3  taste.

          4                 But certain things that are here that

          5  are not tied in necessarily to those percentages are

          6  the expansion of fresh and frozen vegetables, that

          7  we'll start moving on right away, fresh fruit. We'll

          8  start introducing some, trying to introduce some

          9  fish products, more fish products into the menu,

         10  that's a tricky one. We have to make sure we do it

         11  in such a way that it's tasty and kids accept it and

         12  so forth.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There's a smell

         14  situation with fish, so I just want to point that

         15  out. I'm not against fish. I don't want the fish

         16  people coming to get me, just a fact.

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER: So, those are the

         18  things we'll do immediately.

         19                 As I said, you know, we'll be working

         20  to get those top ten percent items out of there. And

         21  we could give you an update on which products have

         22  to be reformulated.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That would be

         24  great. I mean I think we would very much appreciate

         25  seeing what products, getting some information
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          2  immediately about what products you've already kind

          3  of vetted and seem to be ready to go for September

          4  and what ones come out on a rolling basis.

          5                 So, if we could get whatever you have

          6  and then get stuff as it develops, that would be

          7  very useful.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER: Okay. I mean, we

          9  have some now. The Chief Nutritionist was kind

         10  enough to give it to me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Great.

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER: Cheese pizzas,

         13  teriaki chicken, chicken nuggets, Jamaican beef

         14  patties are a very popular item. We've already

         15  reformulated those and those are very popular items.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And they meet the

         17  --

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER: They will now meet.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: By the way you

         20  reformulated them.

         21                 And there is somebody who is willing

         22  to make those and we can buy them?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let me switch to

         25  the vending machine issue for a second.
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          2                 We have a copy here, or I have a copy

          3  here from the 16th of June of this year, the

          4  nutritious snack list that I guess is on the

          5  Department's web page. Many of the items on this

          6  list, since they're on the nutritious snack list,

          7  I'm assuming are eligible presently, be in the

          8  vending machines; is that correct?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, because we

         10  serve snacks obviously on the food line as well, and

         11  that's really a guide for what we're serving in our

         12  snacks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, a couple of

         14  questions. So, if stuff is on this list, it could be

         15  in a vending machine or no?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER: Currently, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is everything

         18  that's on this list going to stay on this list in

         19  your new guidelines and regs?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER: Again, I don't have

         21  the full list in front of me, but some of them would

         22  stay.

         23                 One of the things in our nutritional

         24  standards, we've created some standard serving size

         25  maximums and some of those may violate the serving
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          2  size.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: The items themselves

          5  and some of the requirements, not drastically

          6  changed in terms of the ingredients, but serving

          7  sizes, we set serving size standards which may knock

          8  some of those items out.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So, potato chips

         10  are on the list as a nutritious snack, which means

         11  you would serve those, that you might have those

         12  available and they could be in a vending machine?

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: Even under a new

         14  standards, it's possible to know the artificial

         15  preservatives and other requirements we have that

         16  potato chips might be, not all of them, but some may

         17  pass the standards.

         18                 We've done some research, California

         19  has done some work in this area, and we took a look

         20  at some of the items that passed their standards,

         21  and there are some potato chip items that can pass,

         22  but they have to have the right of the low sodium,

         23  not having the artificial preservatives, and those

         24  type of things.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Tell me about the
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          2  types of cookies that pass.

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, cookies,

          4  again, they have to meet our basic standards with no

          5  artificial sweeteners, artificial -- they meet the

          6  sodium content and so forth.

          7                 What will happen this year is we may

          8  have, again, the serving sizes maximums, so some of

          9  the cookie manufacturers who are giving us cookies

         10  may have to reformulate their product to meet our

         11  new standards.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But say the

         13  typical kind of potato chip one thinks of when you

         14  think of a potato chip, is not this potato chip.

         15  This is like a new and improved healthy, salt free,

         16  fat free, that like Olay stuff, whatever.

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER: We're reformulating

         18  the snack items with the snacks that we serve. So,

         19  yes, they will have to meet our standards and

         20  hopefully they'll still be yummy but they won't have

         21  the same amount of salt or artificial whatever

         22  ingredients that they now have.

         23                 But there are products that can still

         24  meet that, because we've seen elsewhere in the

         25  country that there are potato chips and pretzels and
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          2  things like that that can meet the standards.

          3                 What you will not get are things that

          4  are absolutely forbidden, no matter what, which is

          5  like candy, gum, soda, things like that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just my last two

          7  questions relates to Intro. 316. You raised one

          8  concern about the bill and whose jurisdiction. Aside

          9  from that, which is something obviously I think we

         10  all could discuss, is it your sense that the

         11  regulations that the Department is issuing are,

         12  aside from that the same as what the bill does? Or

         13  is there anything what you've done that goes either

         14  further than the bill or not as far as the bill?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, it differs in

         16  some of the technical items and what's the

         17  ingredient that should be in our out, I think there

         18  are certain items in the bill that are not correct

         19  or just not enforceable in the same way. But I think

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Give me an

         22  example.

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, trans-fats and

         24  things like that, you can't really measure the

         25  trans-fats. There are a couple of other -- I don't
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          2  have the bill in front of me, but there were one or

          3  two things -- it bans all artificial preservatives.

          4  I think that's not 100 percent realistic. You need

          5  some small amount of artificial preservatives for

          6  the shelf life of the items we serve.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: In the bill we're

          8  trying to follow, you know, within --

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER: The percentage of

         10  sweeteners, it's hard for us. There's no labeling

         11  requirement on sweeteners. I mean, those things can

         12  be worked out.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: What we look to,

         14  as people said before in academia they discourage

         15  plagiarism and they encourage it in government. So,

         16  we just look to the federal guidelines and basically

         17  just, you know, in essence with a cite change,

         18  basically just copy the federal guidelines. You know

         19  a little bit stricter --

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER: I think it is a

         21  little stricter. Some of the guidelines, some of

         22  these items are not in the federal guidelines. The

         23  sodium content is a little strict too.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER: If you kept it to
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          2  100 milligrams, you couldn't serve some basic stuff,

          3  like milk, chocolate milk, things like that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But within range

          5  of the federal guidelines is something that you

          6  would -- is what you're heading for in your vending

          7  machine ban?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER: Right. I mean, we

          9  probably have some decent nutritional guidelines.

         10  Now it's a matter of enforcement on the vending

         11  machine side. We're reformulating our snacks,

         12  tightening up and so forth, but some of our

         13  guidelines now are already pretty strict on this.

         14                 I would just feel that, yes,

         15  everything that you're trying to accomplish in the

         16  legislation we've covered in the regulations that

         17  the Chancellor has issued, and even maybe tougher in

         18  some cases, and again I think we have the

         19  enforcement mechanism because we'll have the one

         20  contract that all schools will have to use and we

         21  will control what's sold in the contract. Schools

         22  will not have the discretion to go beyond that list

         23  of items, and we will make sure that those items are

         24  the items that we've approved.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So to kind of a
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          2  layperson, the bill sought to exclude soda and junk

          3  food from vending machines, and that's what these

          4  regulations are going to do?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, I'm sure soda

          6  should be out right now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And the junk food.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER: Candy, gum, jellies,

          9  that type of stuff, again that should not even be

         10  sold now. So, it's a matter of, in this sense the

         11  regulations are talking about compliance more than

         12  necessarily the upgrading, the standards, because

         13  those are things that shouldn't be up there right

         14  now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         17  Leroy Comrie, and then Council Member Yassky.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 A question on, the Chancellor's new

         21  guidelines just came out today; isn't that right?

         22  We're reading at a new regulation on school

         23  nutrition?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER: They were released

         25  today. The Chancellor approved them awhile ago, but
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          2  they were just sent out to the schools today.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And you

          4  were talking to the Chair earlier, Chair Quinn,

          5  saying that -- do you have an implementation plan

          6  for this to start in September?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes. We're working

          8  right now in the early stages of putting together a

          9  contract. We don't have a contract we definitely

         10  intend to have that in shape. We have a frame work

         11  for the contract, and we'll be going out and looking

         12  for proposals on that, and then we will, you know,

         13  we've checked the dates and we can get these new

         14  machines in the schools by September.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER: The question of

         17  phasing out the current machines, and there are a

         18  lot of individual deals that were made and we need

         19  to do a little bit more research on what's part of

         20  those and what termination dates are allowed and so

         21  forth, but that's the plan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's the

         23  plan. But also haven't you already started

         24  purchasing the bulk food items for this September

         25  for cafeterias --
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, for meals we

          3  have ongoing contracts. There's generally a lead

          4  time of several weeks in terms of food.

          5                 We have the contracts in place.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're talking

          7  about the contracts, not the food, right?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, there's

          9  contracts in place and we'll have some new contracts

         10  as well. But we're covered in terms what you can

         11  order. The schools will order the food with two- or

         12  three-week lead times.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How long are

         14  your present contracts locked in for?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, we have

         16  various contracts, depending on the type of item.

         17  So, we have dairy products, we have produce and so

         18  forth. Those contracts, current contracts, some of

         19  them are being reviewed to take us into the school

         20  year, and they'll also being going for a major new

         21  contract on distribution.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, in other

         23  words you can't give us a breakdown on what

         24  contracts have already been let, what foods that

         25  you've already ordered that may not be part of your
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          2  new guidelines, or what contracts you've already put

          3  in for?

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: I don't have that

          5  right now, but we have every contract and when it

          6  expires and what the status of that contract is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          8                 And how do you do the specific

          9  school-based meal planning.

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER: Every school has a

         11  school food service manager. Generally the school

         12  food service manager is responsible maybe for two or

         13  three schools, and they do the bulk of the work in

         14  terms of the ordering and the needs.

         15                 The menus, as I said, are planned by

         16  the coordinators in the boroughs, as well as our

         17  chief nutritionist, and from the operating people we

         18  have a sense of what are the items that are popular

         19  in the schools and what's really going. And our

         20  nutritionists are also the experts in making sure

         21  that we have the right mix of ingredients so we

         22  could meet the standard, and those menus are planned

         23  months in advance.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But didn't you

         25  say earlier that you don't really have an idea of
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          2  what's being eaten and what's not being eaten?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER: I said we've never

          4  done a formal study on what's being done, but I

          5  think our people in the field, in the schools, have

          6  a sense of items are not selling or not. We know

          7  what our most popular items, Jamaican beef patties

          8  are very, very popular. We don't have to do a formal

          9  study to understand that. We know that pizza is a

         10  very popular item.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is that part

         12  of your nutritional concept, the pizza?

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes. Pizza is one of

         14  the items we reformulated.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         16                 But you haven't done a study on --

         17  just go back to the food service managers. Will they

         18  be cut in the new budget?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: No. No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So they're --

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER: Just about one for

         22  every two or three -- it depends on the size of the

         23  school, some food service managers might have two

         24  schools, some might have three or four, there are

         25  around 400 or so school food service managers or in
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          2  that area.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          4                 And I'm concerned, I have a large

          5  emerging South Asian population, Muzlim population

          6  in my district, Venetian population is starting to

          7  explode Citywide, how are you starting to adapt for

          8  those populations in the schools?

          9                 I have schools that are concerned

         10  because they're children can't eat anything in the

         11  school building during that time because they are

         12  strict Muslim, you know, they can't eat anything

         13  that's prepared according to those standards; have

         14  you started to put a plan together?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER: I think we're

         16  somewhat sensitive to that. I can't claim to be an

         17  expert on what the dietary requirements of all those

         18  religions are, but we don't do very much pork or

         19  pork products in our schools, and I don't know the

         20  intricacies of the dietary requirements, but just to

         21  stay away from pork and pork products. Every day in

         22  our school there are sufficient number of products

         23  that are not pork or pork related.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you have

         25  pork products that are still on this new nutritional
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          2  concept or construct?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER: Very, very few. Just

          4  the ham sandwich is reserved. Like turkey-based

          5  sausages. But generally every day, if you're talking

          6  about hot entrees and sandwiches, there's a

          7  sufficient selection, we believe, of non-pork items

          8  that the child could eat a full meal.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And how are

         10  the parents able to make enhancements or suggestions

         11  to the school's nutritional program?

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER: Most schools have

         13  nutrition committees that parents and school

         14  administration and our school food service manager

         15  sits on and there is feedback and we take

         16  suggestions. Some are very active, some schools it's

         17  not a very active committee.

         18                 But generally that is the avenue for

         19  getting feedback from parents on what they like to

         20  see.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Has the

         22  Chancellor's new regulations increased the power of

         23  parental involvement on these committees?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER: It doesn't deal with

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It doesn't

          3  deal with it at all?

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. That's

          6  something hopefully we can take up down the line.

          7                 Just how are you going to implement

          8  the single vending contracts? Can you give us a more

          9  in-depth description on that?

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, we'll be going

         11  out, working with firms, we'll be going out for

         12  proposals, we'll award the contracts, and I think it

         13  can be a very appealing contract because of the size

         14  of what we have, and it will be a central contract

         15  and then schools that will want to order vending

         16  machines will order it from the contractor.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What about

         18  PTAs that have put in their own machines?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Any machine not on

         20  this contract will not be allowed, those machines

         21  will have to be phased out. It depends what deal is

         22  made and what contractual terms there are on those

         23  machines. But this is an item, this is a matter of

         24  compliance and control and you must control this

         25  centrally, because doing that you can control what
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          2  goes into those machines.

          3                 And this does not affect the machines

          4  that are in the teachers' lounges.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, children

          6  ostensibly don't get to those.

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, children should

          8  not be going in there.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, is that

         10  a hint to move on? Okay.

         11                 So, you're going to give the

         12  Committee at a later point the approved foods that

         13  will be in the vending machines?

         14                 MR. OESTREICHER: Absolutely, yes,

         15  we'll still work on that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And once

         17  you have an idea of what the new, your new menus

         18  are, will you be able to give us like a week sample

         19  of what your new menus would look like?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER: We can do that very

         21  soon, because as I said, we do the menus beforehand,

         22  so we don't wait for September to put the menus

         23  together.

         24                 I just would say that the menus

         25  themselves may not look that much different, just
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          2  the items and nutritional content in those menus.

          3  Those items will be different than what they were

          4  last year. But, you know, it's on our website but

          5  certainly we can give you hard copies of what our

          6  menus are going to be.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I have a six

          8  year old and a nine year old and they both don't

          9  like anything that's on the construct or in the

         10  complement now, other than the pizza and the

         11  Jamaican beef patties, and that's just very limiting

         12  to a parent, you know, or to any parent that would

         13  have to consistently buy snacks to bring in or

         14  lunches to bring in. Are you going to be able to --

         15  you said you're going to do testing, where is the

         16  testing going to be done?

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER: Well, it's done in

         18  various schools. When a product that we find is

         19  nutritionally acceptable, we'll go to different

         20  schools at different levels, it's random. And we'll

         21  work with the school administration and they'll

         22  select maybe ten, 12 kids, and we'll put some items

         23  by them, we'll try and get some feedback, you know,

         24  did you like it, not like it, why, why not.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And this is
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          2  periodically done through the year?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes. Yes, it's done

          4  throughout the year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And how

          6  closely do you work with, what is it, the cafeteria

          7  staff, the union staff, to see if there's some new

          8  flavoring or enhancements or some special tweaks

          9  that they put in that might be more acceptable to a

         10  population that you could do systemwide?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: There's some room

         12  for latitude with the local cook in the school, and

         13  working within, staying within our standards, if

         14  they can make the food somewhat more appealing to

         15  their constituency.

         16                 Some of them use their imaginations.

         17  In some cases they don't have the equipment to do

         18  so.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 And just a final question: You're

         21  saying that you're doing monitoring. What are the

         22  new educational initiatives that will come out

         23  dealing with the monitoring of how that is being

         24  disseminated from the cafeteria level through the

         25  school program? Are you putting a construct together
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          2  to deal with that, or to talk about nutrition

          3  information? You're saying that you're going to be

          4  monitoring or starting a summer program on obesity

          5  at one point, or was that your testimony, or was

          6  that -- how are you going to implement that?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PLATT: I can't

          8  give you the details today about the exact nature of

          9  the program or how large it will be. We are

         10  participating in it but we are not driving that

         11  program.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Who is driving

         13  it?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PLATT: The

         15  Parks Department.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The Parks

         17  Department. So you don't know if it's funded or if

         18  it's just a concept?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PLATT: Now, it

         20  is funded, but I can't tell you anything about the

         21  scope of it at this point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, all

         23  right. Well, all right. I'd like to get some

         24  information on that. I'm actually doing three

         25  different family days in my district, and, you know,
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          2  if I could get that information in, actually Parks

          3  and Recreation is co-sponsoring it with me, I would

          4  be more than happy to promote that within the family

          5  days that I'm already doing to help get that out as

          6  part of the information piece. I'm still very

          7  suspicious of how palatable this stuff is going to

          8  be, it's still pretty much the same menu that my

          9  children are already not eating. So, I will look on

         10  the website and get back to that. Since one of the

         11  Chairs are back, I'll defer it back to the

         12  Chairperson.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Sorry

         15  about that.

         16                 I just want to recognize that we've

         17  been joined by Council Member Nelson of Brooklyn,

         18  who I think is a member of the Education Committee.

         19  And next we're going to hear from Council Member

         20  Yassky.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         22  Chair Quinn. Good morning. Just a couple of quick

         23  points.

         24                 The bill that's under discussion,

         25  Intro. 316, does as you know cover all food served
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          2  in school. Cafeteria, would set standards for

          3  cafeteria food as well as for extra cafeteria food.

          4                 My comments focus on the vending

          5  machines, because I think that's a real problem.

          6  You've done, as I said in the outset, the Department

          7  historically has done a pretty good job of upgrading

          8  the nutritional quality of the cafeteria food, I

          9  think still considerable improvements could be made

         10  and you're doing it. And I want to I guess start by

         11  commending you for that and commending you for your

         12  program on the vending machines as well.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I do believe,

         15  and I have a couple of questions, but before I ask

         16  them I want to say I do nonetheless believe that

         17  Intro. 316 is very necessary, and I just want to

         18  explain to you and also to my colleagues, why that

         19  is.

         20                 This has been historically an area

         21  that has not gotten very much attention, the

         22  standards both for cafeteria and extra cafeteria

         23  food, and that's why some of these kind of abuses in

         24  the vending machines flourished.

         25                 I think that to make sure that as,
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          2  you know, as you evolve and as you consider changes

          3  to standards, having to go back and present them and

          4  change a legislation provides an openness and a

          5  transparency and a measure of accountability that I

          6  think in this topic is very, very important, in

          7  addition to the extra enforceability. Because we've

          8  seen, as you know, I mean there are existing court

          9  orders governing what can be sold in school

         10  buildings, and when the Community Food Resource

         11  Center visited several schools, they found I believe

         12  all but one of the schools they visited in their

         13  most recent round of audits there were prohibited

         14  items and the vending machines were open at

         15  prohibited hours containing these machines --

         16  containing these items rather. So, I believe that

         17  there is an enforcement issue and the legislation is

         18  necessary to address it.

         19                 I just want to understand the timing

         20  of this. In September, will the food sold in vending

         21  machines conform to the standards you've put forward

         22  today?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: That's our plan.

         24  That's our plan, to have the contract up and running

         25  pretty soon, and to make the options available to
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          2  these schools to order from that contract. Obviously

          3  you need time to deliver to lots of schools, so we

          4  need to have this thing up and running.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You must then

          6  be within a month of signing a contract.

          7                 And I'm not pressing on the

          8  contractual point so much, but the timing I do want

          9  to understand.

         10                 MR. OESTERREICH: We'd have to have

         11  something ready in about that time. We'd have to

         12  have something, the contract in place, so they could

         13  order from it, we would hope some time in August to

         14  have that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So was there

         16  an RFP put out for this?

         17                 MR. OESTERREICH: We're working to get

         18  an RFP. There will be a proposal out on the streets.

         19  There hasn't been one yet.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. But then

         21  it's going to I guess be a very abbreviated time

         22  frame from proposal to responses due, negotiating

         23  and signing the contract. And I'm not saying that

         24  that's beyond possibility.

         25                 I mean, when I was in private
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          2  practice there were deals that went from the CO

          3  shaking hands, to signing it up in a month. I have

          4  not yet seen that in my short time here in the City

          5  government, but if you can do that, I commend you

          6  for it.

          7                 MR. OESTERREICH: That's our plan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I guess we

          9  will monitor that over the next couple of months to

         10  make sure that that does happen.

         11                 Well, I guess the last comment I want

         12  to make is, I certainly don't believe that the

         13  vending machine issue is all there is, and you've

         14  said you're going to have more to say about exercise

         15  in schools, and health, you know, addressing

         16  nutrition through the curriculum, and I think those

         17  are critical areas, but I do nonetheless believe

         18  that this is an important first step, and, so, I

         19  commend you for what you've done so far and look

         20  forward to working with you to put it into practice.

         21                 MR. OESTERREICH: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         23  Chair Quinn.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         25  Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you. I

          3  apologize for being late, it's graduation season.

          4                 If I ask a question that was

          5  discussed earlier, prior to my getting here, I

          6  apologize, bear with me.

          7                 I have two questions and one bit of

          8  editorializing. I added my name as a sponsor on this

          9  bill because I spend a lot of time in my schools and

         10  I could see the unfortunate shape of some of our

         11  kids, and it really is mind-boggling.

         12                 I happen to be someone who is

         13  blessed, or cursed, depending on your perspective,

         14  with an incredible metabolism, and I don't have some

         15  of the struggles that some other folks have. My

         16  struggle is to actually put on weight, and I take

         17  stuff to put on weight, and some people don't

         18  understand that.

         19                 But when I look at the shape of some

         20  of our kids, I don't know if I want to cry or I want

         21  to shake parents, I don't know what I want to do.

         22  But it really is, it's sad. So, when I saw this bill

         23  I jumped all over it, and I want to commend the

         24  sponsors and the two chairs of these two committees.

         25                 Let me talk about the vending machine
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          2  first, and then I'll ask my second question about

          3  more in line with the food.

          4                 Can either of you give me a better

          5  understanding of how important the vending machines

          6  are in terms of money from local schools.

          7                 I understand that, I agree with it, I

          8  just would like to get a better understanding or a

          9  better appreciation; how much money are we talking

         10  per school?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: I don't have that

         12  information, that's really school-specific

         13  information. And in some cases it might be

         14  substantial. I know they fund certain activities out

         15  of the trips maybe in supporting the school team,

         16  and the prom and things like that, those type

         17  activities.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And each school

         19  kind of empties out the vending machine?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER: It depends on the

         21  contract. Probably they get sometimes a fee for the

         22  machine, and then they get a certain amount of money

         23  for every carton or case sold.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         25                 Council Member Quinn and I sponsored
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          2  legislation to ban ephedra, and out of the research

          3  that we did and staff did on that bill, we realized

          4  that the supplement industry, which I give a large

          5  portion of my check to each week, is a $17 billion

          6  industry. The good food industry, or the health food

          7  industry is that, it's an industry, and there are

          8  lots of folks who are creative who realize that

          9  there are people who are concerned with what they

         10  put in their bodies and are making lots of money

         11  offering lots of different products, and just to

         12  show you, and this is not a prop, here's my snack

         13  for today. I won't show the product, because I'm not

         14  shilling for them.

         15                 What outreach has the Department had

         16  in terms of this industry to get ideas of creative

         17  foods that the kids might like?

         18                 I mean, this stuff isn't bad, it

         19  doesn't taste like mortar, it's apple cinnamon,

         20  there are lots of products. It doesn't have to be a

         21  nutritional supplement but there are lots of good

         22  healthy products out there on the market.

         23                 Have you tapped into the industry?

         24  Because I happen to think the industry looks at the

         25  Department of Education and all these schools as,

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  you know, a vast gold mine. Is there any interaction

          3  with the health food industry?

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER: We are doing a

          5  research on all the products, and I don't know

          6  exactly who we've spoken to in the health product

          7  industry, but we've done research on the type of

          8  snacks that would fit on our nutritional standards,

          9  and there might be items just like that, and we want

         10  a mix of items, and as we've said we've relied on

         11  some other -- in California they've done a lot of

         12  this work already, and as I said, I was presently

         13  surprised to see in the mix of products that they

         14  found acceptable are things you might see as health

         15  products per se, and some normal snacks that can

         16  meet our -- you know, are formulated in such a way

         17  that can meet our standards.

         18                 And we see that in the list of items

         19  that we will give to schools, a mix of those. We

         20  expect to have a lot of these type of products. The

         21  choice of what they've actually put in their

         22  machines, as long as it's from that product, we see

         23  is really up to the school, and they will select the

         24  items and hopefully they will look and see, you

         25  know, what's selling and hopefully we'll try some of
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          2  these items, and so forth. But we want to have a mix

          3  of items, as long as it meets our standards.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, I've tried

          5  things from bars and shakes to cheesecake, and

          6  depending on the product and depending on the

          7  company some, you know, you could spackle the walls

          8  with and some you can get by eating, and I just

          9  think it's never too early to try and encourage kids

         10  to, or take away the easy choice. And I appreciate

         11  those efforts and I would just encourage you to tap

         12  into that industry, that I think they'd bend over

         13  backwards to get their foot in the door of such a

         14  big market here in the City.

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER: I agree. I agree.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         17  Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Actually I have a

         19  couple follow-up questions.

         20                 This isn't on the vending machines,

         21  but on the meals, not all schools have stoves or

         22  ovens, right?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: Not all schools cook

         24  from scratch, they'll have some type of warming oven

         25  in some schools, others will have full kitchens.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is that going to

          3  be an issue for some schools in trying to expand the

          4  use of fresh vegetables as opposed to canned

          5  vegetables, is that going to be more difficult for

          6  schools that don't have a full kitchen complement?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER: Some schools will be

          8  better equipped to offer that kind of food than

          9  others.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And what's the

         11  plan for how to deal with that? Is that going to be

         12  handled by the vendors or are different schools

         13  going to get different things from vendors, or you

         14  know, some schools just going to not get us

         15  nutritional foods because of the way their kitchen

         16  is set up? I mean, what's the plan to deal with

         17  that? And what is, if you know, I don't have any

         18  knowledge, the Chair of the Education Committee may

         19  know, but like, of all the schools of the City, do

         20  80 percent have stoves? Is this like a little

         21  problem? Is it 50 percent have stoves? Because a lot

         22  of what you said, which sounds great, it does sound

         23  though like you need to be able to cook a little

         24  more.

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes. I mean, most of
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          2  the food, the vegetable issue is an issue that some

          3  are better able to serve fresh vegetables than

          4  canned vegetables, they'll both be out there, and

          5  the ability to serve maybe some of the fresh and

          6  frozen might be more readily available in some

          7  schools than others. But most of the other items are

          8  generally prepared foods that most kitchens will be

          9  able to serve, to heat up and serve in one way or

         10  the other. So, for the most part I think most

         11  schools will be able to do this.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't think

         13  anybody else had questions. Thank you very much for

         14  your testimony.

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Next we're going

         17  to have a panel of three folks. Dr. Abraham Jelen,

         18  from the American Association of Pediatrics; Dr.

         19  Margaret Wootan of the Center for Science in the

         20  Public Interest; and Katrina Montzon from the

         21  Community Food Resource Exchange.

         22                 And just, obviously with the

         23  Administration we didn't have timed testimony, but

         24  since we have scheduling difficulties today, we are

         25  going to be timing the remaining witnesses.
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          2                 If the three folks are there, if

          3  everybody could get seated, we'll set the clocks for

          4  three minutes.

          5                 So, Dr. Jelen, if you'd like to

          6  begin. Oh, you've got the clock right there. Okay,

          7  great.

          8                 Your light needs to be off for the

          9  mic to be on.

         10                 DR. JELEN: Okay. My name is Abraham

         11  Jelen. I'm Acting Chairman of Pediatrics at the

         12  Brooklyn Hospital Center. I'm co-chairman of the New

         13  York City Youth Advocacy Committee of the American

         14  Academy of Pediatrics, and I am also a practicing

         15  pediatric gastroenterologist.

         16                 I'd like to thank you for the

         17  opportunity to address you this morning.

         18                 Obesity has become an epidemic with

         19  significant consequences to the physical,

         20  psychological and financial health of the nation.

         21                 Type-2 diabetes, heart disease,

         22  stroke, hypertension, sleep apnea and fatty liver,

         23  are some of the conditions exacerbated by obesity.

         24                 Overweight individuals often suffer

         25  from low self-esteem, since society clearly prefers
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          2  thinness.

          3                 Finally, the cost of caring for the

          4  medical complications of obesity places growing

          5  pressure on the already fiscally stressed health

          6  care delivery system.

          7                 The problem of obesity has its roots

          8  in childhood. Fat children tend to become fat

          9  adults. Fat adolescents are at particular risk for

         10  becoming fat adults.

         11                 Those of us adults who are forever

         12  trying to shed a few pounds know how problematic and

         13  frustrating that effort can be.

         14                 Imagine how much more difficult it

         15  must be for the overweight child. That child may

         16  feel that dietary restriction is a punishment. He

         17  may not have the self-control to restrict food

         18  consumption, limit food choices, decreased

         19  television viewing and increased exercise.

         20                 He may still be subject to the taunts

         21  of his peers, damaging his self confidence, and, so,

         22  preventing him from feeling good enough about

         23  himself to change his eating habits.

         24                 He may not possess the maturity to

         25  understand why being fat is unhealthy, and why the
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          2  effort to lose weight is important.

          3                 I currently care for many obese

          4  children. When I first see these children their

          5  eating patterns and their activity level are already

          6  well entrenched and resistance to change.  Once

          7  obesity is present, reversal is nearly unattainable.

          8                 Although we will not give up trying

          9  to get these kids to lose weight, prevention would

         10  certainly be preferable.

         11                 The genesis of obesity is complex.

         12  There are multiple genetic and environmental causes

         13  that interact with each other.

         14                 The genetic factors may be difficult

         15  to address, but we should be able to influence the

         16  environmental ones.

         17                 Pediatricians have been recommending

         18  healthy lifestyles for a long time, by educating

         19  parents about breastfeeding, appropriate food

         20  choices and encouraging physical activity and

         21  discouraging excess television viewing.

         22                 However, as with other epidemics,

         23  individual efforts will not suffice, and a public

         24  health solution is warranted. The community has to

         25  join the effort. Parents cannot expect their kids to
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          2  resist the temptation of candy, cookies, fast food

          3  and soda and other minimally nutritious foods at

          4  home, if these same foods are offered in school.

          5                 The schools should reinforce the

          6  message that parents and pediatricians are trying to

          7  inculcate. They should not contradict that message.

          8                 Kids are quick to pick up on

          9  inconsistencies. We want our kids to listen to their

         10  teachers about school work and behavior.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Doctor, if you

         12  could sum up, please.

         13                 DR. JELEN: Okay.

         14                 Well, I'm practically finished. But I

         15  am concerned when the schools are giving a subtle

         16  message about food choices that are actually

         17  harmful. Can we ask school children to comply with

         18  some of the things they learned in school, can

         19  disregard others? How can we expect schools to pick

         20  messages they should obey. The junk food and soda

         21  free school act, if passed or enforced, will put

         22  parents, pediatricians and schools on the same page

         23  in the battle to prevent obesity.

         24                 It would present a consistent message

         25  to school children, and hopefully begin to change
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          2  their environment in a way that will persuade them

          3  to make more healthy food choices.

          4                 I hope this is helpful to you in your

          5  deliberations. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Dr. Wootan.

          8                 DR. WOOTAN: In addition to obesity,

          9  which we've heard a lot about today --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just identify

         11  yourself for the record.

         12                 DR. WOOTAN: Margaret Wootan, with

         13  Center for Science in the Public Interest.

         14                 In addition to obesity, which we've

         15  heard a lot about today, very few children are

         16  eating a healthy diet. Only about two percent of

         17  children meet the mean dietary recommendations in

         18  the food guide pyramid. Children are eating too much

         19  fat, too much saturated fat, not even fruits,

         20  vegetables and whole grains.

         21                 The sale of foods in schools out of

         22  vending machines and ala carte lines and other

         23  venues outside of school meals negatively are

         24  affecting children's diets, because these foods are

         25  high in calories, high in sugars, high in fats and
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          2  low in nutrients.

          3                 The most common items sold out of

          4  vending machines includes soft drinks, sports

          5  drinks, fruit drinks that really aren't juice. Snack

          6  foods, candy, baked goods that aren't low in fat.

          7                 These are the very foods that are

          8  contributing to children's over-consumption of

          9  calories and to overweight. I think while most

         10  people agree that physical inactivity is a part of

         11  the problem, it's very clear that our children are

         12  consuming more calories than in the past.

         13                 A number of different studies using a

         14  number of different methods show this, the kids are

         15  eating about 80 to 230 extra calories per day,

         16  depending on their age and their activity levels,

         17  and that this extra caloric intake is driven by

         18  foods that are high in added sugars and by snack

         19  foods.

         20                 Studies show that when children

         21  consume more soft drinks, they consume more calories

         22  and they're more likely to be overweight. They show

         23  that snack food consumption is increased over time.

         24  They also show that these low-nutrition foods

         25  displace healthier foods from the diet, like low fat
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          2  milk and fruit juice.

          3                 These foods are readily available in

          4  schools, most schools, virtually all high schools,

          5  three-quarters of middle schools have vending

          6  machines or other similar venues.

          7                 We need to model healthy eating in

          8  the cafeteria, as well as throughout the campus, as

          9  well as teach it in the classroom.

         10                 Also, we could provide you with a

         11  number of examples of schools that have improved the

         12  nutritional quality of these offerings and not lost

         13  money, examples from all around the country, that

         14  you can sell healthy foods to kids and still pay for

         15  your band uniforms and other extracurricular

         16  activities, and those are a growing number of

         17  examples.

         18                 For example, in North Minneapolis, in

         19  a high school they got rid of all of their vending

         20  machines, all of their soda pop vending machines but

         21  one, and they replaced those vending machines with

         22  fruit juice, water and other healthy beverages and

         23  they made just as much money after changing to those

         24  healthier options as they made beforehand.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Say that again,
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          2  I'm sorry.

          3                 DR. WOOTAN: That was in North

          4  Minneapolis. There are similar examples from Maine,

          5  from Vista, California and other places.

          6                 I think also there's been a lot of

          7  talk about childhood obesity as being solely due to

          8  physical inactivity and that the answer is PE in

          9  schools, and certainly we need more physical

         10  education, but if you look at the trends in physical

         11  activity, that most of the big changes happen well

         12  before 1980 when obesity rates started to go up, you

         13  know, community design change, people walk less. Now

         14  if you look at the food side, power intake has gone

         15  up, portion sizes are bigger, kids are eating a lot

         16  more snack foods, there's vending machines

         17  everywhere.

         18                 So, these kinds of changes in schools

         19  are very important, one very important component of

         20  addressing childhood obesity.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MS. MONTZON: Hi. I'm Katrina Montzon,

         23  and I'm a Food Policy Analyst at Community Food

         24  Resource Center, and thank you for the opportunity

         25  to speak with you today.
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          2                 We're very pleased to hear Mr.

          3  Oestreicher's testimony. It represents a revolution

          4  we feel on the philosophy of OSF&S, and we

          5  congratulate them on taking the first step toward

          6  improving the nutrition environment within New York

          7  City public schools.

          8                 For over 20 years, CFRC has been

          9  committed to ensuring that New York City's

         10  low-income children have access to the nutritious

         11  meals they need to grow and learn by working

         12  collaboratively with OSF&S to increase participation

         13  in Federal Child Nutrition Programs, especially

         14  school breakfast and school lunch.

         15                 For many of the City's 1.1 million

         16  public school children, school meals are the most

         17  nutritious meals they receive each day.

         18                 We know that a hungry child can't

         19  learn, but until now the City has done little to

         20  ensure that the more than 800,000 students eligible

         21  for free and reduced price meals in our public

         22  schools are eating the nutritious meals to which

         23  they are entitled.

         24                 Children who do not eat breakfast

         25  often do not perform as well on tests as other
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          2  students, have higher rates of tardiness and

          3  absenteeism, and are more likely to display behavior

          4  problems.

          5                 As the Department of Education works

          6  on its ambitious school reform plans, one of the

          7  simplest things the Department can do to ensure that

          8  every child is ready to learn is to make breakfast

          9  part of every child's school day.

         10                 There are more than over 700,000

         11  families in New York City with public school

         12  children, nearly two-thirds of them live at or below

         13  130 percent of the federal poverty level, making

         14  them eligible to receive breakfast at no charge.

         15                 Unfortunately, while the need is high

         16  participation is devastatingly low. Currently only

         17  13 percent of all New York City public school

         18  children consume a school breakfast, which is less

         19  than one-half the participation rate in the rest of

         20  New York State. And if New York City recounted as a

         21  separate state, a participation rate would rank

         22  second to last in the entire country.

         23                 The second topic we addressed is

         24  vending machines.

         25                 We're particularly concerned about
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          2  this issue because it deters participation in the

          3  school lunch program.

          4                 Vending machines full of food high in

          5  fat, sugar, sodium and questionable additives are

          6  problematic on two levels.

          7                 First and foremost, far too many

          8  students turn to these machines for their

          9  sustenance, instead of eating school meals.

         10                 In high schools our vending machines

         11  are ubiquitous fewer than one in three, only 29

         12  percent of students consumed a school lunch in

         13  October of this past school year.

         14                 Second, principals have come to rely

         15  on the revenue generated from sales through these

         16  machines to find some of their school's basic needs.

         17  Twenty-five years of budget cuts have caused

         18  principals to look for alternative sources of

         19  revenue to fund athletic programs, arts, music and

         20  even school supplies.

         21                 Ironically this means that principals

         22  rely on children to eat junk food, in order to

         23  ensure that schools have the necessary funding for

         24  an adequate education.

         25                 In April of 1999, concerned with the
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          2  increase of vending machines, CFRC filed a lawsuit

          3  against the Board of Education to seek its

          4  compliance with federal, state and local laws

          5  governing the sale of snacks within public schools.

          6                 As part of a stipulation of

          7  settlement reached in January 2001, principals were

          8  reminded of laws governing the sale of competitive

          9  foods.

         10                 In addition, CRFC has been allowed to

         11  make unannounced visits over two years to dozens of

         12  public schools to check for compliance.

         13                 Not surprisingly, most schools

         14  visited were in violation of the law by selling

         15  non-nutritious foods competing with school breakfast

         16  and lunch.

         17                 In many cases food items for sale are

         18  decided by the company that supply the machines.

         19  Each principal negotiates a separate contract so

         20  there is no clear picture of how many machines

         21  entirely operate within New York City schools, how

         22  much money they generate or the quality of food they

         23  offer.

         24                 Since the Spring of 2001, of 50

         25  unannounced monitoring visits we found noncompliance
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          2  foods in 48 of those.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Could you wrap

          4  up, please?

          5                 MS. MONTZON: Yes, I can.

          6                 Our main concern is that the

          7  Department of Education, while is moving towards

          8  corrective measures, and we believe that they are

          9  really fundamentally interested in improving the

         10  nutrition education, the main issue we found is that

         11  schools are non-compliant. They've been reminded,

         12  they've been told, they've been warned, they've been

         13  brought before a judge, and still schools are

         14  non-compliant.

         15                 The issue we have is how are we going

         16  to monitor those schools? How are we going to ensure

         17  that they're selling nutritious snacks, whatever

         18  those nutritious snacks come to mean, and that

         19  they're not competing with the school meals program,

         20  which is for many of our students the most

         21  nutritious meal that they get every day.

         22                 And just in summary, I'd like to show

         23  you some of the food we found on our visits.

         24                 I think these are the things that

         25  we're trying to keep our children from eating
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          2  instead of a balanced meal every day.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Those are items

          4  that you got from vending machines in your 50

          5  visits?

          6                 MS. MONTZON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Not the water.

          8                 MS. MONTZON: Not the water.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We've been

         11  joined by Council Member Helen Foster from the

         12  Bronx. Thank you.

         13                 I actually did have a quick question.

         14  I guess I would like to ask Dr. Jelen, as I

         15  understand, you deal day in and day out with

         16  obesity; could you answer the question that I asked

         17  the DOE very briefly? I'm sure it requires a much

         18  longer explanation, but what are reasonable

         19  strategies for changing eating habits? Is the

         20  modeling, which I have confessed I have not found

         21  very successful with my own son. Is that, am I not

         22  doing a good job, or is that not a good technique?

         23  Or what other techniques have you found successful?

         24  Let's assuming, you know, you're dealing with very

         25  young children, and so you don't have years and
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          2  years of perhaps bad eating habits, how do you

          3  change eating habits?

          4                 DR. JELEN: I'm glad you asked,

          5  because I wanted a chance to actually respond.

          6                 Modeling to me is the best way to do

          7  this. Now, it's not always successful, and I stand,

          8  we're dealing so much with first getting kids to eat

          9  anything. Kids, if you leave them alone, and offer

         10  them a variety of foods, will over time meet their

         11  needs. In answer to Councilwoman Quinn's question

         12  about giving the nutrients over a period of time,

         13  you don't have to get all your vitamin D in one day,

         14  you can get it over a period of time. You can get

         15  your various vitamins over a period of time. And the

         16  kids are better at fighting you and they will win

         17  the battle, and so you have to remove take away the

         18  battle and model.

         19                 In other words, you model, your goal

         20  is to get them to be healthy adults, and they'll get

         21  there by having the appropriate choices of foods,

         22  sometimes you can supplement it with a little

         23  vitamins if it makes you feel better, but they will

         24  get the appropriate amount of protein, they will get

         25  the appropriate amount of calories. They will not
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          2  get the appropriate vitamins always in a specific

          3  time sequence.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Let me

          5  understand the modeling concept, because maybe I'm

          6  not fully understanding it.

          7                 In other words, the theory is that

          8  when I eat dinner, when I eat my salad eventually my

          9  child will eat salad, because I'll eat it every

         10  night and he'll --

         11                 DR. JELEN: Eventually, yes. But I

         12  think part of the problem is not only we're dealing

         13  with schools and home --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right.

         15                 DR. JELEN: There are many other

         16  influences which it would be appropriate to address,

         17  fastfood industry and so forth, that are also

         18  interfering with your modeling.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right. That's

         20  what I'm worried about. Pepsi has a lot of dollars

         21  out there to advertise, and, so, I am competing, you

         22  know, with my limited time against Pepsi and

         23  McDonalds. You know, I can say no Frenchfries and

         24  then, you know, I'm a big advocate of just not

         25  having television, that cuts to the chase. I do not
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          2  allow my child to watch television because the

          3  advertisements on there, it seems to me, are so

          4  compelling. But going back to the modeling, modeling

          5  at home, and I guess what I didn't understand about

          6  what the DOE said is, how is that modeling supposed

          7  to work? Because at least at home I'm eating my

          8  salad, my kid sees me eating my salad, I'm hoping

          9  some day it's going to rub off. I try and get him to

         10  taste, he's very resistant to that, but at school no

         11  one's -- unless the other kids are eating a salad,

         12  there's no modeling going on. Am I wrong about that?

         13                 DR. JELEN: You don't want the

         14  negative modeling either. If there's a big Coke and

         15  Pepsi vending machine there, that's blocking the

         16  message that you're trying to make in the cafeteria

         17  lines.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, so let's

         19  say we don't have the vending machines; where is the

         20  modeling occurring on the 800,000 meals a day? Is

         21  there any modeling?

         22                 DR. WOOTAN: Two points. One is that

         23  you're not the main role model, even if you're a

         24  wonderful parent. If you talk to your kids as often

         25  about food as the food industry did through
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          2  advertising and marketing, you would be considered a

          3  total nag. You know, children are exposed to a

          4  tremendous amount of marketing, and unfortunately

          5  four to five food ads aimed at children are for low

          6  nutrition food, for sugary cereals, fastfood, soda

          7  pop, snack foods and other low-nutrition foods, so

          8  the modeling that children are exposed to in our

          9  modern food environment is mostly toward eating

         10  unhealthy foods, through marketing, advertising,

         11  through what's sold out of the vending machines, the

         12  very fronts of the vending machines are ads, Coca

         13  Cola --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right.

         15                 DR. WOOTAN: So, the modeling needs to

         16  take place not only at home but also in the schools

         17  by serving health food and not allowing the

         18  unhealthy foods, because you're not there as a

         19  parent to help your child, guide your child toward a

         20  healthier choice.

         21                 While you're entrusting your child to

         22  a school for six hours a day, it's the school that

         23  has responsibility for feeding them well for most

         24  children, and the after school programs and the food

         25  marketing, we need to address all of these things,
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          2  the schools being one important piece because that's

          3  where children are spending a lot of their time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: It seems that

          5  conspicuously absent from the DOE's plan is any kind

          6  of parental education, and I just don't understand.

          7  If modeling is the way this is supposed to work, and

          8  it's not so easy to do when you're competing against

          9  Lucky Charms, right, if you try and get your kid to

         10  eat plain old Cheereos than Lucky Charms, it's quite

         11  a feat of argument to convince your child that

         12  that's not good. If you don't have a parental

         13  education component, this seems like it won't be

         14  very successful.

         15                 DR. WOOTAN: The thing about obesity

         16  is it's a multifactorial problem with many

         17  contributors and certainly we need to work on making

         18  sure schools have recess and physical education and

         19  doing parental education and we're addressing

         20  parental education through other kinds of policy

         21  approaches, curbing the vast amount of aggressive

         22  marketing of low-nutrition foods to kids, all of

         23  these things, schools is one piece of this puzzle.

         24  It's an important piece and it's a good place for

         25  the Council to start.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

          4  talk a little bit about what CFRC saw when you went

          5  to school.

          6                 So, presently most the items that you

          7  have there shouldn't be in the vending machines.

          8                 MS. MONTZON: Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But it seems like

         10  the majority of the schools you site visited, there

         11  were a vast array of foods that by all standards are

         12  not nutritious and shouldn't even be there; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 Tell me a little bit more about what

         15  you saw when you went into the school.

         16                 MS. MONTZON: Most of what we saw was,

         17  as you said, a vast array of options. We saw them in

         18  hallways, we saw the vending machines in cafeterias.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You saw what in

         20  the hallways?

         21                 MS. MONTZON: Vending machines.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         23                 MS. MONTZON: And the vending machines

         24  in schools, so depending on what school, as the DOE

         25  explained, currently each principal has negotiated a

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  separate contract so it's not uniform.

          3                 Some schools are selling juice or

          4  snacks. Some schools are selling soda, it sort of

          5  depends.

          6                 What we see is kids lined up in front

          7  of vending machines in the cafeteria while meal

          8  service is going on, and choosing to have, you know,

          9  a drink high in sugar with all sorts of artificial

         10  colors and flavors, which according to OSF&S's own

         11  regulations are in violation of what a nutritious

         12  snack should be, and consuming that.

         13                 So, instead of getting a meal that

         14  it's free and which should contain up to five items

         15  such as protein, grain, milk, fruit or vegetable and

         16  another fruit or vegetable, instead what they're

         17  eating are things like bright pink products.

         18                 One school we went to the principal

         19  assured us that the timer on the soda machine was

         20  working, but we got to the machine and they were

         21  purchasing soda at 11:00 in the morning.

         22                 So even when the principal assures us

         23  that they've taken the appropriate steps, they're

         24  not actually out there seeing what happened. Other

         25  schools when we come to visit unplug their machines
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          2  and say they're not actually on, the kids plug them

          3  back in and buy their snacks.

          4                 So, that's what we see. We see kids

          5  eating stuff that none of us think is okay, instead

          6  of eating a nutritious meal.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I've heard reports

          8  from folks involved in this debate that 80 percent

          9  of what gets sold at vending machines is drink-wise

         10  is water. And I know you haven't, and couldn't

         11  possibly survey every school, but from what you've

         12  seen in the work that you and your colleagues have

         13  done, does that seem likely to you?

         14                 MS. MONTZON: There are a number of

         15  schools that do offer water through vending

         16  machines.  The reason why is that in many schools

         17  the water isn't potable.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The water in the

         19  fountains?

         20                 MS. MONTZON: The water fountains.

         21  We're asking poor children to pay $1.25 for 20

         22  ounces of water that they should be able to receive

         23  from a reliable source in our schools. So, for some

         24  schools that is an issue, or they have some of those

         25  electrolyte replacement beverages outside of their
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          2  gyms for after school activities.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do you think,

          4  based on what you've seen, that 80 percent of all of

          5  the drinks that get sold in vending machines are --

          6                 MS. MONTZON: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And what about,

          8  because this issue of electrolyte drinks, or

          9  isotonics I guess they're called, have come up in

         10  our discussions with various folks involved, and

         11  there are some folks we've met with who have urged

         12  the Council to consider amending 316 to include

         13  those. Because I am although the Health Chair, I

         14  think someone who does not exercise but knows she

         15  should, and is modeling bad behavior on exercising,

         16  I know. So I'm not all that familiar with isotonic

         17  drinks or the need for them, so I'm not all that

         18  clear on what's actually in them and what's not, and

         19  we've asked folks in the industry to get the list of

         20  the ingredients and stuff like that so there will be

         21  further discussion about this; but what, if any, is

         22  your opinion on the isotonic drinks? And I do commit

         23  after the budget I should try to start exercising. I

         24  know I'm walking more.

         25                 MS. MONTZON: I'm not a nutritionist,
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          2  but I'd like to answer just for a second from our

          3  perspective.

          4                 The issue is most of these children,

          5  if they are exercising, I don't think that, you

          6  know, they're running Triatholons at all, they don't

          7  need that rapid replacement.

          8                 Also, the best way to rehydrate your

          9  body is with water. So any conversation beyond that,

         10  you know, I think there are some very athletic

         11  students or something, there might be issues with

         12  that. But as the regulation currently stands, from

         13  the Chancellor's Office, they're non-compliant, they

         14  have artificial colors and flavors in them.

         15                 So, when we see them, they're in

         16  violation of that regulation.

         17                 DR. JELEN: They're also very high in

         18  sugar.

         19                 DR. WOOTAN: I mean, it's just sugar

         20  water with some minerals added. But these are for

         21  most kids, you know, glorified sodas. Like

         22  Fruitopia, you know, it shows a lot of fruit on the

         23  label and is made to look more helpful but it's just

         24  sugar water, very similar, identical to soda pop.

         25                 The one thing about the sports drinks
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          2  is they do have less sugar than soda pop, probably

          3  about half the amount of calories, half the sugar.

          4  But it is just for most kids just an alternative for

          5  soda pop, just sugar water.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just wanted to

          7  say we've been joined by Council Member Bill

          8  DeBlasio, of Brooklyn, the Chair of the General

          9  Welfare Committee and a member of the Education

         10  Committee.

         11                 Okay, I don't think anyone else has

         12  any questions for this panel. Thank you all very

         13  much.

         14                 The next we're going to hear from the

         15  panel, because there are obviously two sides to

         16  every, at least to every issue, probably five or

         17  six, given the City of New York.

         18                 Next we're going to hear from a panel

         19  of folks representing the soft drink and vending

         20  industry. Guy Johnson of Johnson Nutrition

         21  Solutions; William Mandile of Champion Vending; and

         22  Joseph Power of Answer Vending.

         23                 Just get seated and feel free to

         24  start in whatever order you'd like to go in.

         25                 If folks could just kind of have

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  their seats and if we could just get a little quiet,

          3  that would be great. When the light is off, the mic

          4  is on.

          5                 MR. MUEN: My name is Thomas Muen. I'm

          6  the president of Answer Vending. I'm actually

          7  stepping in for Joseph Power. Possibly I can shed

          8  some light on the impact of vending machines in the

          9  schools. You've heard a lot of testimony today and

         10  maybe I can answer some questions I heard raised

         11  today.

         12                 We currently supply about 100 New

         13  York City schools with vending services. As you well

         14  know there's a thousand schools, that's about ten

         15  percent.

         16                 Answer works with the administration

         17  of each school's to fill the machines with approved

         18  products. We're dedicated to selling healthier

         19  products to the students, and our product mix

         20  includes fruit snacks, pretzels, bottled water,

         21  juice and isotonics that prevent dehydration.

         22                 I would like to bring up a few facts

         23  and then answer any questions that might come up.

         24                 Okay, only one in four students makes

         25  a daily purchase from our busiest New York City
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          2  school account from our vending machines.

          3                 Of those one in four children making

          4  purchases from the machine, 100 percent of the

          5  beverages are water, juice, isotonics and natural

          6  teas.

          7                 We also have endorsed the healthy

          8  flavored program co-endorsed by Senator Schumer.

          9  Currently we are working with product manufacturers,

         10  developing additional nutritional products.

         11                 Since only one of four students make

         12  a purchase, removing the machines will not reduce

         13  obesity. It will only reduce the after school

         14  activities.

         15                 I am not saying that certain children

         16  are over-indulging on unhealthy items. We need to

         17  encourage them to want to make better choices, not

         18  have to.

         19                 When a child feels they have to do

         20  something, they don't, as we all know.

         21                 We have to encourage them to want to

         22  make those healthy choices. We need to keep the

         23  athletic programs funded, promote quality healthy

         24  choice, and provide a healthy lifestyle class, that

         25  better explains the long-term benefits of proper
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          2  diet and exercise.

          3                 Okay, Answer Vending Service has

          4  generated $55,000 in annual funds for one New York

          5  City school that are used for various underfunded

          6  teams, such as uniforms and trips for their special

          7  meets.  It helps keeps the kids exercising.

          8                 Studies have proven that children

          9  have reduced their physical activity by 13 percent,

         10  while maintaining the same calorie intake as 20

         11  years ago.

         12                 We have established relationships

         13  with the coordinators of student affairs and

         14  athletic directors from New York City schools, and

         15  are amazed at the positive health and personal

         16  growth results that these will make on New York City

         17  children.

         18                 These included the dedicated teachers

         19  and directors on any committees that come out of

         20  these meetings. Okay, I've met with Michael Conies

         21  and soon-to-retire John Umans, two people who

         22  definitely have the children's best interests in

         23  mind over fundraising nutritional issues. This is

         24  the attorney for the contracts and the leader of the

         25  Cosis (phonetic). The Cosis, basically so everyone
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          2  understands, are the people that deal with your

          3  children after school every day, all right? So they

          4  see them, they talk to them, and they know their

          5  real wants and needs.

          6                 We are committed to working with

          7  designated research groups to improve vending

          8  services to the children. We have worked with many

          9  companies to increase needed funds for the students

         10  and look forward to working with New York City

         11  Council on this matter.

         12                 Again, we fill machines, we don't

         13  manufacturer products, so as we have gotten these

         14  guidelines, we have changed the products and we have

         15  produced substantial income to back up some of the

         16  earlier testimony. We don't sell soda, we don't sell

         17  candy, we don't sell any of that.

         18                 As we've seen it in the schools,

         19  absolutely. But it can be reduced and the funds can

         20  be substantial still.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And under the

         22  time, very impressive.

         23                 MR. MUEN: I've also provided a school

         24  vending analysis of that one school for the Council.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. After
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          2  we reset this, the Sergeant will come over to take

          3  that information. Thank you.

          4                 MR. MANDILE: My name is William

          5  Mandile, and my company is Champion Vending.

          6                 Champion Vending is a Brooklyn-based

          7  vending company that has grown to employ over 20

          8  people from our community.

          9                 These 20 people are solely employed

         10  to service vending machines for our New York City

         11  school system.

         12                 Over my 12 years of doing business

         13  with New York City public schools, I have witnessed

         14  firsthand the benefits of funds raised through sales

         15  on these vending machines.

         16                 The benefits raised from funds to

         17  subsidize football and baseball teams to support for

         18  underprivileged children attending school trips.

         19                 Besides being the President of

         20  Champion Vending, I'm also the parent of three

         21  children attending PS 121 in Mark Twain Junior High

         22  School in Brooklyn.

         23                 These schools both use vending

         24  machines to raise funds to provide students with

         25  products such as water Gatoraid, and various food
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          2  drinks.

          3                 Speaking as a parent, I do not have

          4  any objection to the variety of products being made

          5  available to my children, but I do find the vending

          6  a great fundraising tool for their particular

          7  schools.

          8                 The service Champion provides to each

          9  of its schools are at no cost, and we provide the

         10  equipment, manpower and funding.

         11                 The profits from these machines are

         12  shared with the schools to support their many

         13  programs.

         14                 In 12 years of service to the New

         15  York City schools, we have provided scholarships,

         16  stipends, beverage and snack donations, as well as

         17  numerous PT and school club donations.

         18                 As a small business, we are proud of

         19  the capability of maintaining a higher level of

         20  service needed for the New York City schools.

         21                 Recent news articles have stated that

         22  chocolate carbonated soda, gum and candies made

         23  available to students and vending machines.

         24                 Champion Vending is part of a vending

         25  group that services over 300 New York City schools.
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          2                 None of the above-mentioned products

          3  are in the machines. In fact, our machines feature

          4  water, Gatoraid, fruit juices, pretzels, baked

          5  potato chips and healthy, other various healthy

          6  items.

          7                 In my opinion, the vending revenue

          8  was removed from the school's budget, then schools

          9  would no longer have the funding to support art,

         10  sports and other various children's activities.

         11                 Children will also then leave the

         12  school to make unsupervised visits to make these

         13  purchases in neighboring stores.

         14                 If the current selections were

         15  changed, then the most popular beverages will be

         16  purchased elsewhere. If vending product types were

         17  too restricted, the children will not make the

         18  purchases in the school and revenue would be

         19  significantly decreased.

         20                 I believe that vending machines can

         21  be accompanying to Intro. 316 and not an opponent,

         22  given a good variety of products and choices.

         23                 And just to sum up. I had e-mailed

         24  Mr. Yassky, I don't know, I think I got a response

         25  from you. I've seen television shows where the
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          2  chocolate was dumped on the table like it was here.

          3  I could assure you that if no one else came out of

          4  my vending machines or the 300 others that we do,

          5  I'm the President of the company, I'll be the first

          6  one to debate it, because I know it doesn't.

          7                 But I do see the benefits of the

          8  monies given. Football teams in Lincoln High School,

          9  with new jersies, new helmets, score boards given

         10  with no corporate logos, just given to the schools.

         11  The schools make money, the vending companies make

         12  money, the children get the popular drinks they

         13  want, and in 12 years all I have was letters of

         14  recommendation and praise from parent groups and

         15  students and speakers. There was not one letter

         16  brought to my office as an opponent of the machines

         17  of what we were doing to hurt the children's

         18  nutritional guidelines or what the parents seemed to

         19  be what they wanted to give their children.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 DR. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. My name

         22  is Dr. Guy Johnson, I'm a nutrition scientist with

         23  20 some years experience in the food industry, and

         24  I'm here today on behalf of the New York Soft Drink

         25  Association.
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          2                 Clearly there is a major issue with

          3  obesity in this City and in this country, and it's a

          4  crying shame to see kids experiencing type-2

          5  diabetes and that kind of thing, and we absolutely

          6  have to do something about it. And we command your

          7  committees for trying to take decisive action to put

          8  this on the radar screen.

          9                 The concern we have however is that

         10  we are skeptical that this initiative will in fact

         11  have an impact on obesity, because we all know

         12  obesity boils down to a simple equation, it's the

         13  number of calories that you take in and the number

         14  of calories that you expend through physical

         15  activity. And by restricting the foods that you're

         16  talking about of minimal nutritional value in the

         17  schools, calories doesn't appear to be a criteria,

         18  and I'm concerned that this could send kind of a

         19  confusing and ineffectual message to kids.

         20                 For example, the proposal would ban

         21  soft drinks but allow 100 percent fruit juices, each

         22  of those, however, have the same number of calories,

         23  about 150 calories for 12 ounce servings. So, if a

         24  kid trades off soda for fruit juice, you're not

         25  gaining anything at all in the war against obesity.
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          2                 Similarly, water is allowed, but diet

          3  soft drinks aren't. Both of those have zero

          4  calories. It seems like if you're going to try and

          5  encourage kids to cut calories, you want to give

          6  them as many choices as possible for them to cut

          7  calories from their diet without sacrificing the

          8  taste and so forth that they need.

          9                 So, you ought to be encouraging

         10  things like diet soda, water and maybe isotonics,

         11  which have fewer calories than other things.

         12                 The second thing I'm concerned about

         13  is there is absolutely no evidence that banning

         14  these things from schools will have an impact on

         15  obesity, only nine percent of the calories from soft

         16  drinks are obtained from school, either in

         17  cafeterias or vending machines, according to USDA

         18  data, and there is no scientific evidence to show

         19  that when these things are restricted that it

         20  actually has an impact on obesity.

         21                 In fact, I'm told that NIH is funding

         22  a study to try and get those data because none

         23  exist. However, a real possibility is that you could

         24  find a backlash or a counterproductive reaction to

         25  this.
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          2                 I don't know about you guys but I've

          3  got a teenage daughter and if I tell her she can't

          4  have something, she makes it her life's work to make

          5  it happen, and these kids are inserting their

          6  independence, and I think it's very possible that

          7  they would react to a ban on soft drinks, and there

          8  are other favorite foods by sort of putting them on

          9  a pedestal for forbidden fruit.

         10                 Let me just sum up by saying I think

         11  there's a huge opportunity for the New York City

         12  school systems to become learning laboratories for

         13  leanness. Someone else mentioned the fact that you

         14  need to embrace kids in the solution to make these

         15  things happen.

         16                 I think you've got a wonderful

         17  setting to instill in kids the ability to

         18  incorporate their favorite foods into a diet that's

         19  based on balance, variety and moderation, and

         20  encourage physical activity, it's only through that

         21  kind of education process that you're going to give

         22  tools that will last a lifetime, rather than putting

         23  them in a quote, protected environment of the

         24  schools which doesn't last for very long, they don't

         25  spend all of their time there, they're going to
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          2  drink soda and eat their favorite foods. I think

          3  you've got a better shot at fixing the obesity issue

          4  by showing them how to do it responsibly. And what a

          5  great opportunity for New York to provide leadership

          6  for the rest of the country because I don't think

          7  anybody else is really doing this in an organized

          8  way.

          9                 Thanks so much, I appreciate it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I have a couple of

         11  questions.

         12                 You said you vend stuff to 100

         13  schools; is that right?

         14                 MR. MUEN: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And you do soft

         16  drinks?

         17                 MR. MUEN: We don't sell any soft

         18  drinks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sorry. I apologize

         20  for that.

         21                 MR. MUEN: That's okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And you went to

         23  some of the schools, although you don't provide soft

         24  drinks or any of that stuff, that you did see it in

         25  some of the schools that you provide to?
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          2                 MR. MUEN: Yes. Actually, I have to

          3  commend the City. Up til about two years ago there

          4  really wasn't a lot of involvement on what went on,

          5  and we had a very small presence. Actually a lot of

          6  our growth came from, as this legislation and public

          7  opinion has come out, schools have reached out for

          8  what's approved. So, we have gotten those lists and

          9  we have gone back and said, hey, listen, we can put

         10  those approved snacks in and still make the money.

         11  Let us show you. And in our situation, and a few

         12  other companies in New York do the same, we use

         13  hand-held computers to plug into the equipment. So

         14  actually those other items do sell. As long as the

         15  soda and other items are not on during the day, you

         16  can sell quality -- you know, it's hard to meet with

         17  another company that is selling chocolate and so

         18  much during the day, it does create a problem for

         19  us.

         20                 Regardless of it, even in this one

         21  instance in this one school, and we can back it up

         22  from those data sheets, if anyone wants to request

         23  them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, that would be

         25  helpful. I would appreciate that.
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          2                 MR. MUEN: It shows that we're just

          3  not selling enough anyway. The $55,000 in revenue

          4  for one high school is a lot of money, okay? We

          5  didn't sell any candy, we didn't sell any soda, but

          6  we also only sold, because some of the items aren't

          7  100 percent juice.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          9                 MR. MUEN: Some of them are iced tea,

         10  some of them are isotonics. So they are half the

         11  calories of soda, but regardless, it's only one unit

         12  for every four kids per day, so I mean I can

         13  understand that food service might say well maybe we

         14  don't know because there's no data on it, are they

         15  competing with us? Well, if we were selling that

         16  much, I would have brought a helicopter in today,

         17  okay? But that's not the case.

         18                 And like I said, this can be proven,

         19  and maybe we can put some of these myths aside.

         20                 I agree this is not going to help

         21  reduce obesity, because we're just not selling

         22  enough, period. And nobody is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But kind of what

         24  you're saying, it's two things. I mean, one, your

         25  colleague said none of this stuff is in schools, but
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          2  you would have --

          3                 MR. MUEN: No, they agree there's

          4  some. There are some companies, and I'm sure those

          5  people wouldn't come to sit here today that aren't

          6  in complaint.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But I'm hearing

          8  from what you're saying is, is that there is a bit,

          9  one of the things we also heard is that there's

         10  going to be a big loss in, you know, quarters and

         11  dollars that are going into the machines if we make

         12  this change, but I hear part of what you're saying

         13  is that as the Department and the Board have tried

         14  to be stricter, business has responded and business

         15  has kept up. I mean, not to the point where you're

         16  Donald Trump and helicoptering.

         17                 MR. MUEN: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But that business

         19  has kept up with the changing regulations, which

         20  would lead one to believe that some of the concerns

         21  about loss to very important programs, after school

         22  sports, et cetera, may not be as severe as is

         23  speculated, it's not what they saw in other cities,

         24  and based on your own experience with the changing

         25  regs?
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          2                 MS. MUEN: Yes, it's getting a little

          3  difficult to understand the regulations, so clearing

          4  them up would be beneficial.

          5                 By my standpoint, the word

          6  "artificial coloring," we're trying to figure out

          7  how that -- because I can't put in baked product

          8  because it has artificial coloring. I can't

          9  understand, I'm not a nutritionist so we would like

         10  an answer on that, what the artificial coloring has

         11  to do with nutrition, and how come I can't give it

         12  to the healthier -- you know, there are some

         13  products that are a lot healthier. Like Granola

         14  bars, I can't put them in the school right now

         15  because they have artificial coloring. But if you

         16  didn't artificially color some items, you'd never

         17  eat them, I promise you that, because it's not

         18  appealing.

         19                 I would say probably 95 percent of

         20  the things you do eat probably have some artificial

         21  coloring to make it more appealing. That is one of

         22  the regulations right now, and half of the healthy

         23  items I used to sell I can't put in right now.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, we will

         25  definitely work towards whatever the result, whether
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          2  it's the bill or the existing regulations that they

          3  be as common sensical as possible, and that we will

          4  urge the departments to make sure there's an

          5  outreach to the industry to make sure that they are

          6  understandable.

          7                 My last question, Doctor, you're

          8  raising this issue of calories, you're not

          9  proposing, are you, that kids who are -- that any

         10  answer to helping reducing calories and obesity is

         11  to encourage young children to drink diet soda,

         12  because although it doesn't have calories it does

         13  have an array of artificial sweeteners and chemicals

         14  of which there has been vast nutritional and

         15  scientific debate. So, you're not proposing that,

         16  are you?

         17                 DR. JOHNSON: I'm saying that the way

         18  to address the issue of obesity is to try and

         19  balance the energy equation in your favor, and if

         20  incorporating diet soft drinks or water or other

         21  things that have fewer calories into a diet is going

         22  to accomplish that, you're going to have a positive

         23  impact on obesity.

         24                 I'm not saying that we need to

         25  encourage --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But diet soda

          3  can't possibly be good for kids. I mean, I've never

          4  met a parent who like let's their kid have diet

          5  soda.

          6                 DR. JOHNSON: It's nutritionally

          7  indistinguishable from water.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Diet coke?

          9                 DR. JOHNSON: There are no --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't mean to

         11  interrupt, but how could that be, it has saccharin

         12  in it, is it Nutrasweet or aspartame or whatever all

         13  that stuff is.

         14                 DR. JOHNSON: It doesn't have any

         15  calories, and all of the ingredients --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But calories are

         17  not the only evil in the world.

         18                 DR. JOHNSON: Yes, but it doesn't have

         19  any calories, and all of the ingredients --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But calories are

         21  not the only evil in the world.

         22                 DR. JOHNSON: They're regulated by the

         23  Food and Drug Administration, they're all safe.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I drink Diet Coke,

         25  full disclosure here, way more than I should, but
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          2  I'm a grown person. We're talking about what

          3  children should drink, and I can't imagine, I don't

          4  think water and Diet Coke are the same thing. I mean

          5  it has chemicals in it, there's artificial

          6  sweeteners, this has nothing but water in it, so

          7  albeit not a doctor, I just don't, I mean they're

          8  not the same, factually they're not the same,

          9  something that is one thing is one thing, something

         10  that is a whole bunch of this stuff than it is

         11  another thing, even if the other stuff isn't bad

         12  stuff, it has a bunch of stuff in it so it is not

         13  something that is one thing, this is one thing.

         14  That's water, it's a whole bunch of stuff in a can

         15  together. But nobody could think that it's good for

         16  grown children to have all of those artificial

         17  things, even if they're calorie free, like saccharin

         18  and Nutrasweet or aspartame or whatever it's now

         19  called.

         20                 DR. JOHNSON: Let me reiterate. I'm

         21  not trying to say that there are no differences

         22  between diet soft drinks and water. Obviously

         23  they're two different things, but from a nutritional

         24  standpoint, they don't have any calories. That was

         25  my point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But calorie is not

          3  the be all and end all of nutrition, is it?

          4                 DR. JOHNSON: It is with respect to

          5  obesity. That's where the rubber meets the road.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, I don't think

          7  that's true. I find that hard to believe.

          8                 DR. JOHNSON: It's calories in and

          9  calories out that determine body size. So it matters

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's like that

         12  woman that used to be on cable TV, like screaming

         13  like it's all about the fat. Remember that woman,

         14  with like the very short hair? I mean, I think it's

         15  more complicated than calories.

         16                 DR. JOHNSON: Well, it is more

         17  complicated than any single food. Obesity is a very

         18  complex issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         20                 DR. JOHNSON: And if I could just

         21  touch base on this modeling issue? The idea of

         22  telling kids that they can't have access to

         23  something in a certain setting, I think certainly it

         24  sends a message, but it may not be the kind of

         25  message that's going to address the obesity issue.
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          2  I've got an idea that I think would be really

          3  interesting.

          4                 Kids know that obesity is an issue,

          5  they see it every day. The kids that are affected by

          6  it are subject to all kinds of unpleasant

          7  psychological and physical issues, I think it would

          8  be really fascinating to challenge the kids to come

          9  up with some creative solutions about this.

         10                 I'm not aware of anybody who is

         11  really doing this, you know, you get panels of

         12  experts --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you stick

         14  around you'll hear from some folks.

         15                 DR. JOHNSON: Wonderful. That's great.

         16                 And telling kids what's good and bad

         17  for them is unlikely to have an impact. But if you

         18  can get them to recognize the issue and generate

         19  some creative alternatives about how they would

         20  address it, I think you might find some very

         21  interesting possibilities that could be leveraged.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Just one brief

         23  comment. Not only do we have some students

         24  testifying, but the Strang Institute, for instance,

         25  has done a series of public announcements that were
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          2  developed by kids, so this is being done currently.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          4  Yassky, and then Council Member Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you,

          6  David. David sees me chomping at the bit here. Thank

          7  you, David.

          8                 First let me say, Christine, that

          9  after hearing all of this today I'm going to invite

         10  you to spend a week living in my apartment and

         11  living my lifestyle, healthwise that is. If Rudy

         12  Giuliani and Oliver Koppell could live with each

         13  other, then you and I could, right?

         14                 The attorney in me is coming out,

         15  because what I really would like to do now is have

         16  redirect and bring Dr. Wootan and Dr. Jelen to sort

         17  of counter what I just heard, and Council Member

         18  Quinn hit on it.

         19                 Doctor, I have a title at the front

         20  of my name, you have a title at the end of your

         21  name, your title in this case wins out. But the way

         22  you frame the issue about obesity, you made it very

         23  simple and you said it's about calories.

         24                 Dr. Wootan said obesity is a complex

         25  multifactoral problem. Dr. Jelen said the genesis of
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          2  obesity is complex. Those three statements don't

          3  jive.

          4                 Can you help make them jive for me?

          5                 DR. JOHNSON: It's extremely complex.

          6  I didn't mean to say that the issue of finding

          7  solutions to obesity is simple. The quick knee-jerk

          8  reactions don't work. It is much more complicated

          9  than saying eat this don't eat that. The etiology of

         10  obesity is incredibly complex. It has a genetic

         11  component, it has an environmental component, and

         12  how you make food selections to balance energy

         13  intake with physical activity and how you encourage

         14  people to lose weight and keep it off is an

         15  enormously complex problem.

         16                 This was an issue, a public health

         17  thing, that's developed over the last 30 or 40

         18  years, and it's not going to be solved overnight,

         19  because it is so complex.

         20                 I know there are a lot of efforts

         21  being made to try and figure out how to get a handle

         22  on this, one interesting one is a thing called

         23  Colorado on the Move, where they're giving people

         24  pedometers and getting them to try and increase

         25  their physical activity by 2,000 steps a day, which
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          2  they believe would stem at least the increase of

          3  obesity. So, physical activity is really important,

          4  obviously physical activity in schools is a piece of

          5  the equation, but I think ways to encourage kids to

          6  exercise on a regular basis really needs to be part

          7  of this complex solution also.

          8                 There are a lot of nutritionists who

          9  think that you get more bang for your buck trying to

         10  increase physical activity, because you've got a

         11  better shot at convincing kids that there are a lot

         12  of fun ways to exercise rather than getting them to

         13  make fundamental changes in their diets. So, that's

         14  certainly an important issue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, that's a

         16  little more of -- that's a deeper answer than the

         17  superficial statement. That's a deeper answer than

         18  the superficial statement that was made that

         19  obesity, is sort of over-simplistic in my mind

         20  obesity is caused by too many calories and not

         21  enough physical activity.

         22                 In your emphasis on calorie counting,

         23  as the chair said is sort of like the be all and end

         24  all of this issue, I think is, frankly, is a

         25  self-serving perspective.
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          2                 DR. JOHNSON: Well, I think it's

          3  undeniable that when you really come down to the

          4  biochemical basis for obesity, calories are what

          5  counts. The only way to change obesity is to impact

          6  that equation. That's just a plain biochemical fact,

          7  and that's the bottom line.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We think we just

         10  remembered the name of that woman on television, it

         11  was Susan Power or Susan Potter. Reverted like a

         12  crew cut. She said it was all about fat.

         13                 But anyway, Council Member Yassky.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No relation.

         15                 You are not Joseph Power? I'm trying

         16  to figure this out.

         17                 MR. MUEN: I'm Thomas Muen.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 A couple of things. Mr. Mandile, have

         21  you taken a look at the regulations that the

         22  Department of Education proposed today? I know they

         23  just came, I didn't know if you had an opportunity

         24  to take a look at them?

         25                 MR. MUEN: No, I haven't.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I guess I'd

          3  appreciate hearing from you, and I want to be clear,

          4  when we put together the Intro. 315, Chair Quinn,

          5  myself, the staff, and the other members who worked

          6  on it, we did so some work with the nutritional

          7  experts trying to figure out what we thought was the

          8  best set of standards, but speaking just from

          9  myself, I guess, but I'm sure that other Council

         10  members feel the same way, I very much would like to

         11  have some input on suggestions. If there are ways to

         12  improve or modify what's in this bill, I would love

         13  to hear them.

         14                 I guess in particular, I'd also be

         15  very curious to hear from you whether your products

         16  fit within the Department of Ed standards as

         17  proposed today or not, and if you feel that

         18  modifications are needed to them or not, I'd be

         19  curious to hear them.

         20                 There's just a couple of things I

         21  want to follow up on.

         22                 Mr. Johnson, I think you said, you

         23  used a number nine percent, but I wasn't quite sure

         24  what -- could you tell me what the nine percent was?

         25                 DR. JOHNSON: According to the data
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          2  from the USDA, continuing survey of food intake by

          3  individuals, published by a woman at USDA named

          4  Chandy Bowlman (phonetic.) She looked at the source

          5  of various foods in the diets of teenage girls,

          6  based on this large government survey, and the

          7  figure that she published was that nine percent of

          8  the calories from soft drinks, carbonated beverages,

          9  that these girls consumed, was either from vending

         10  machines or other places, school cafeterias, in

         11  their diet. So, nine percent of the calories from

         12  soft drinks --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. I guess

         14  that's maybe the half full, half empty thing. To me,

         15  you know, reduce someone's caloric intake by nine

         16  percent, at least in some categories, would be a

         17  material thing to have done.

         18                 And you know, one thing you learn

         19  about government is you get a little done here and

         20  there, and it adds up to a lot, if you persevere.

         21                 And then on this particular issue,

         22  you know, I think you agreed, obesity is a complex

         23  thing. You used the phrase, you know, knee-jerk

         24  solutions, as no one I'm sure here is saying if you

         25  took the soda out of vending machines you're going
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          2  to go back to the obesity rates you had 15 years

          3  ago. That would be foolish. No one is going to say

          4  that.

          5                 My claim is much more limited, that

          6  it would be a step toward going back to those rates,

          7  and step in the right direction. And that is I guess

          8  what I haven't yet heard a refutation from. And I

          9  mean, just to follow-up, just to reiterate some of

         10  the discussion about the, you know, of course

         11  calories are not the only issue at stake in

         12  nutrition. I understand if we really wanted to

         13  attack weight gain, I suppose we need to put

         14  cigarette machines in schools. I know that some

         15  people find that smoking helps them keep their

         16  weight down, nobody would suggest though that that

         17  would be a smart thing to do, and similarly, you

         18  know, as a human being, as I've struggled to have a

         19  healthy regimen in all sorts of ways, myself and

         20  also as a parent. I know it's not so simple as

         21  saying don't eat this, don't eat that, but by the

         22  same token we do know and I know, as a parent, that

         23  if I put any candy bars and soda right in front of

         24  my kid, then they'll eat more of it than if I don't.

         25  So, I'm sure that you do the same thing for your
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          2  teenage daughter.

          3                 So, that is to me just the goal here.

          4  It's not going to change the obesity issue

          5  overnight, but it is a step in the right direction,

          6  and that's my only ambition here.

          7                 DR. JOHNSON: Could I make one more

          8  step to try and clarify my nine percent calorie

          9  figure? Because it is a little confusing. What that

         10  is is nine percent of the calorie from soft drinks.

         11  So, those girls consumed on the average one serving

         12  of soft drink a day, which is roughly 150 calories,

         13  so roughly ten percent of that, so it would be 15

         14  calories, that on an average basis.

         15                 So, I'm not disagreeing with the fact

         16  that there are a lot of issues contributing --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: If the schools

         18  on their own could reduce caloric intake -- and you

         19  know, for some people caloric intake is not the

         20  issue, but for those who it is, by nine percent in

         21  soft drinks, in this and that, and, you know, we're

         22  only talking about soft drinks, at least in your

         23  testimony. If you do nine percent in every category,

         24  you'd have done a major thing.

         25                 So, you know, to me I would say that
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          2  number supports the argument for Intro. 316.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We've been joined

          5  by Culver (phonetic). We were talking about you

          6  before.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 Next we're going to hear from Abbey

          9  Block, Cathy Nonas and Dr. David Krol. And then

         10  there's one more panel after those folks.

         11                 And given that what was mentioned

         12  earlier about the Finance Committee and the Stated

         13  Meeting, folks who weren't scheduled to be on panels

         14  prior to the hearing would like to testify, we're

         15  not going to be able to accommodate those today most

         16  likely. So, if you could make sure that we'll put a

         17  pad of paper on the table at the back, and if you

         18  could make sure we have your name and address, phone

         19  number, fax number, e-mail, everything you need for

         20  people in this day and age, we'll make sure we keep

         21  you abreast of the next time that the bill is heard.

         22  We apologize for that.

         23                 And if Ms. Bloch would like to start,

         24  that would be great.

         25                 MS. BLOCH: I'm Abbey Block. I am a
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          2  volunteer for the American Cancer Society and was

          3  the Chair of the Nutrition and Physical Activity

          4  Advisory Committee for the National American Cancer

          5  Society.

          6                 We've been talking about the

          7  importance of obesity for the support of this bill,

          8  and certainly obesity is critical. It is now

          9  estimated that one out of every eight children is at

         10  increased risk or already overweight or obese and

         11  this has become a serious issue and we keep talking

         12  about the issue because of the effect when they

         13  become an adult.

         14                 The problem is we're now dealing with

         15  all of the ramifications, heart disease, diabetes,

         16  cancer, as a reality now for them and this has

         17  become a major public health concern and issue.

         18                 We've also been stressing obesity,

         19  but we have to remember that poor nutrition is a

         20  critical aspect of children's ability to learn, to

         21  be able to have enough emotional stability,

         22  discipline in the classroom to be able to make the

         23  most out of their learning experiences.

         24                 And poor nutrition really contributes

         25  to their inability to get the most out of their
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          2  school environment.

          3                 It is estimated that only two percent

          4  of school-aged children meet the minimum of the five

          5  food groups that are recommended by the USDA. Two

          6  percent. And that only 51 percent, that's 51 percent

          7  of our children on any given day eat less than one

          8  serving of fruit, and that 29 percent eat less than

          9  one serving of vegetables. And it becomes critical

         10  from a nutritional perspective that we try to make a

         11  better environment for these children and to make it

         12  more conducive for them to understand the importance

         13  of good nutrition.

         14                 Added sugar is estimated to increase

         15  the calories in youngsters' daily diets by more than

         16  20 percent, and added sugar is just wasted

         17  non-nutritional calories with no other benefits.

         18                 Up to 85 percent of all children will

         19  consume at least one soda a day. And a recent UCLA

         20  study showed that one soda daily will increase a

         21  child's risk of obesity by 60 percent.

         22                 So, it is a factor what we could

         23  offer these children during their exposure to

         24  school.

         25                 With obesity does come major serious
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          2  clinical conditions. In a report that was given at a

          3  national meeting this past week, a researcher from

          4  the CDC, the Center for Disease Control, reported

          5  that boys that are diagnosed with diabetes at age 10

          6  will lose 19 years of life and 31 years of quality

          7  in their life, and that girls who were diagnosed

          8  with diabetes at the age of ten will also lose 19

          9  years of life and almost 33 years of quality life.

         10  And we are now seeing an average of diabetes

         11  exponentially increasing in this young age group.

         12                 Minority children are even at a

         13  greater risk than --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me. I'm

         15  sorry for interrupting. We forgot to put the clock

         16  on, so if you could just wrap up? Thank you.

         17                 MS. BLOCH: Okay.

         18                 To change the consumption of

         19  children, we really need to have a clear consistent

         20  message.

         21                 The American Cancer Society has

         22  assembled ten quick tips which you have included in

         23  a white paper that indicates how students can better

         24  engage and adopt some of these tips for a healthier

         25  lifestyle.
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          2                 It also provides you with a number of

          3  schools in school districts throughout the country

          4  who successfully change their offerings of food both

          5  in vending machines, as well as in their programs,

          6  successfully both nutritionally, as well as

          7  monetarily.

          8                 So, you have the reports to show it

          9  is possible to both eat healthier, children will

         10  choose healthier food if given the option and it

         11  still can be profitable. And we need to make this an

         12  overall policy that's consistent for these children.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 MS. NONAS: I'm Cathy Nonas. I'm a

         15  certified diabetes educator and also a registered

         16  dietician. I thank you for the opportunity to speak

         17  to you. I'm from North General Hospital in Harlem.

         18                 This is the area for the dance

         19  theater home for the Apollo Theater, for City

         20  College, for the same Harlem Little Leaguers, and

         21  some of the highest rates of diabetes and obesity in

         22  the country.

         23                 My issue is obesity and concomitant

         24  risks and a lot of people have come before me and

         25  said a lot of what -- now, I could probably do the
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          2  three minutes pretty easily.

          3                 The one thing that I want to say is

          4  that the rate of obesity is increasing at 20 to 30

          5  percent per decade in children, and if you break it

          6  down among ethnic groups you see significant

          7  differences in Hispanic and African American kids.

          8                 The risk of getting type-2 diabetes

          9  really is at puberty, when kids are fat, when they

         10  have a genetic susceptibility and they go through

         11  puberty. That's like the triumphant and they get

         12  type-2 diabetes, and our concern is that kids are

         13  going through puberty younger because they're

         14  fatter. They're getting diabetes, and when you have

         15  diabetes at 10, 20 years later you've got a

         16  30-year-old kid who has the same kind of problem

         17  that those people we see who are 65 and 70 have had

         18  because they had type-2, the adult diabetes.

         19                 I really have no so-to-speak beef

         20  with the school food, except that it's uncool to be

         21  in a lunchroom cafeteria and most of the food is

         22  overcooked.

         23                 I would like to give you some ideas

         24  of modeling in other areas besides the cafeteria. I

         25  wholeheartedly think that you're vending machine
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          2  bill is a good one, even if it makes a small

          3  difference, it still makes a difference, and we have

          4  to continue to do these kinds of things.

          5                 You want a model? We tried to do a

          6  study once with Coca Cola, they were very friendly

          7  where we were putting water bottles in vending

          8  machines and making them cheaper than sodas, and

          9  they were -- the problem was we ran up against Hagen

         10  Daz and other things. So, the fact that also the

         11  City Council wants to make this bill, wants to make

         12  a couple of major contracts with people is very

         13  helpful, because you can take that money and you can

         14  negotiate a bigger percentage of a contract and

         15  earmark it for physical activity and nutrition in

         16  the schools.

         17                 Also I think we have to reach out to

         18  parents and teachers and invest them in the same

         19  thing. So, we want to make bake sales uncool and

         20  sell pedometers instead, maybe have kids write a

         21  healthy food cookbook and sell it, or sell taste

         22  tests in schools using different kinds of foods that

         23  people aren't used to.

         24                 And finally, we can compare the cost

         25  of value meals as fast food places versus the cost
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          2  of vegetables, and we can also calculate which

          3  juice, fruit juices actually have more sugar, and

          4  you want to talk about isotonic drinks, we look at

          5  the amounts of sugar that kids drink, and also the

          6  kinds of food that they eat.

          7                 So, I think that you can incorporate

          8  it into the mass curriculum as well. I think this is

          9  an opportunity to teach kids, and I think that they

         10  don't eat calories, they do eat food. We can teach

         11  them well, and we can teach them to be healthier.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I will say that

         14  Coke did give us a couple of things. What are they

         15  called? Those Stepometers, or whatever?

         16                 MS. NONAS: The pedometer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes.

         18                 MS. NONAS: They're going to have an

         19  America on the Move Now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sure they were

         21  under $75 so we didn't violate any law. If not, I'll

         22  return it immediately.

         23                 DR. KROL: Dr. David Krol. I'm a

         24  pediatrician who lives and works in Washington

         25  Heights and now I'm Assistant Professor of
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          2  Pediatrics in Health Police and Management in

          3  Denistry at Columbia University.

          4                 I'm going to expand the discussion

          5  just a little bit. As a practicing pediatrician,

          6  I've seen the unfortunate affects of obesity and

          7  tooth decay on children adolescents in my community.

          8                 Many of my school-aged patients are

          9  overweight, some obese and at early risk for type-2

         10  diabetes. Most of my patients have experienced tooth

         11  decay by the time they have left high school.

         12                 So, the cause of the obesity epidemic

         13  is multi-factorial. There is no getting around the

         14  fact that junk food, sodas, and other foods of

         15  minimal nutritional value contribute to an increased

         16  calorie intake, and thus are a contributory factor

         17  to obesity.

         18                 A study from obesity experts at

         19  Harvard revealed that the odds of becoming obese

         20  among children increased 1.6 times for each

         21  additional can or glass of sugar-sweetened drink

         22  they consumed every day. A 12 ounce can of regular

         23  soda contains 40 grams of added sugar, and provides

         24  about 140 to 160 additional calories to the diet,

         25  but little else of nutritional value to children.
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          2                 For 120 pound adolescent, who had a

          3  healthy diet and exercises regularly, it would take

          4  two hours of moderate walking to burn off a 20 ounce

          5  soda. If you've ever been on a Stairmaster in the

          6  gym and realize how much work it takes to take off

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I have. I swear I

          9  have. The ones are better, though, that you use your

         10  arms. I have a bad back, they're better if you have

         11  a bad back.

         12                 DR. KROL: Even with a concerted

         13  effort to increase physical activities in schools,

         14  one would be hard pressed to find even a hour's time

         15  for such activity.

         16                 The presence of these foods and

         17  drinks in schools marketed to children in an

         18  educational setting, and in a setting where parents

         19  have little control over its availability, is not

         20  consistent with a healthy educational environment.

         21                 Even the Surgeon General, our

         22  Nation's top doctor agrees with this. The 2001

         23  Surgeon General's Call To Action To Prevent and

         24  Decrease Overweight and Obesity, which our current

         25  Surgeon General supports made these suggestions:
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          2                 - Ensure that healthy snacks and

          3  foods are provided in vending machines, school

          4  stores, and other venues within the school's

          5  control.

          6                 - Prohibit student access to vending

          7  machines, school stores, and other venues that

          8  compete with healthy school meals in elementary

          9  schools and restrict access in middle, junior, and

         10  high schools.

         11                 Childhood obesity, however, is not

         12  the only epidemic to which junk food and sodas are

         13  contributing factors.

         14                 Frequent exposure to sugar sweetened

         15  soft drinks increases the risk for and severity of

         16  tooth decay, according to the American Dental

         17  Association.

         18                 Studies have revealed a significant

         19  positive association between the frequency of soft

         20  drink consumption and carries tooth decay rate, even

         21  after accounting for other sugary foods and related

         22  variables.

         23                 In one study, persons who consumed

         24  sugared soda three or more times daily had a 17 to

         25  62 percent higher dental carries rate than those who
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          2  consumed no sugar soda.

          3                 Another study revealed a three

          4  percent higher risk of caries for each can of soft

          5  drink per week. Dental caries is the single most

          6  common chronic disease of childhood, it's five times

          7  more common than asthma.

          8                 Children with untreated dental

          9  carries may miss school or be unable to concentrate

         10  in school because of pain.

         11                 Consistent with its mission of

         12  promoting oral health, the ADA opposes targeting in

         13  promotion and advertising that has the potential to

         14  increase children's consumption of foods and

         15  beverages low in nutritional value and high in

         16  decay-enhancing carbohydrates.

         17                 The ADA opposes contractual

         18  arrangements that influence consumption patterns

         19  that promote increased access to soft drink for

         20  children.

         21                 Finally, I'd like you to keep in mind

         22  that often the money made available for schools in

         23  return for pouring rights, is barely enough to cover

         24  the cost of one textbook for each child in the

         25  school, or school district.
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          2                 Surely, trading our children's health

          3  for less than the price of a textbook is not worth

          4  the financial, social, psychological and medical

          5  costs of childhood obesity and tooth decay.

          6                 I encourage you all to support this

          7  legislation, and in doing so help New York City

          8  school children and my patients learn in a healthy

          9  environment.

         10                 Thanks for your time and attention.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 You have a question?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you. In

         14  the interest of time, as I know our caucus has

         15  already started, I just want to thank very much each

         16  member of this panel that's worked with my office

         17  and the Council staff in formulating this, but I

         18  just want to thank you very much for your efforts

         19  and your assistance.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to add

         21  to that thanks, and I think it was very important at

         22  this time to have the nutritional aspects but also

         23  the oral health aspects, which is something that

         24  hadn't particularly been brought up until your

         25  testimony in the hearing. So, thank you very much
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          2  for that.

          3                 We're now going to hear from our last

          4  panel, which is Laura Pensiero of the Strang Cancer

          5  Prevention Center; Devin Mann, who is a resident at

          6  NYU/Bellevue; and Raymone Figueroa, of the Harlem

          7  Children Zone/Truce Fitness and Nutrition Center;

          8  and Michelle Fusaro, who is a public school parent.

          9  I think we might need a fourth chair up there.

         10                 And, again, I apologize to the other

         11  folks who wanted to testify that we won't be able to

         12  get to today because of the Democratic Caucus and

         13  Finance Committee and Stated. We did think the

         14  hearing would be after the budget, so we would have

         15  more time. But there is a pad on the back table, if

         16  you'd like to leave all of your contact info. We

         17  will be back in touch with you for the next hearing

         18  and other info on the bill.

         19                 Thank you. If Laura Pensiero would

         20  like to start, that would be great. If the light is

         21  off, the mic is on.

         22                 MS. PENSIERO: Okay. Good afternoon.

         23  My name is Laura Pensiero. I'm a registered

         24  dietician. I'm also a chef, and I spend a good deal

         25  of my time educating children and their parents
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          2  about nutrition through cooking, through food,

          3  giving them very practical measures to change the

          4  way that they eat.

          5                 And through these programs, I've also

          6  heard a lot of their questions and concerns. Today

          7  I'm representing Strang Cancer Prevention Center,

          8  the oldest cancer prevention center in the country,

          9  affiliated with New York Presbyterian Hospital.

         10                 Taking into consideration the link

         11  between obesity and cancer, and that one-third of

         12  cancers can be prevented through dietary

         13  modification, Strang is committed to education

         14  measures, lower rates of obesity and subsequent

         15  future cancer risks, particularly for children and

         16  their families.

         17                 We've heard the statistics today. I'm

         18  not going to go through how many children are obese,

         19  but what I would like to focus on is the

         20  relationship between obesity and future cancers.

         21                 We've also heard today the

         22  unlikelihood of an obese child becoming a lean

         23  adult. So really the stage is set for a much

         24  accelerated risk of cancer for children that are

         25  obese, and that is what made Strang recognizing this
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          2  problem, and also some compelling statistics that

          3  were released recently in a New England Journal of

          4  Medicine article that reported 14 percent of male

          5  cancer deaths and approximately 20 percent of female

          6  cancer deaths directly related to obesity.

          7                 Recognizing this problem and the

          8  long-term implications of childhood obesity, Strang

          9  partnered with the Met Life Foundation to create

         10  healthy children, healthy futures.

         11                 This Child Health Initiative was

         12  implemented in several of the country's larger urban

         13  areas, including New York, Atlanta and LA.

         14                 The initiative provides children with

         15  the opportunity to learn about healthy eating and

         16  physical activity and motivates them to create

         17  compelling messages to other children.

         18                 Basically the program is set up in

         19  such a way that children become publicists, making

         20  healthy eating cool for other children.

         21                 We've had a great pilot study and

         22  we've had great success with the groups that we've

         23  run in LA, New York and Atlanta.

         24                 The health messages that they've

         25  formatted have been in the format of posters, TV
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          2  ads, radio spots, Internet spots, and they have

          3  created these based on eight healthy habits that we

          4  have outlined, health professionals, and advisory

          5  boards have helped them create.

          6                 I will be happy to get the Council

          7  the eight healthy habits. Our publicists, however,

          8  face a daunting task. These children are combatting

          9  over 30,000 TV commercials a year, the majority of

         10  which promote high fat and sugar-laden foods.

         11                 At the same time, you know, they're

         12  also combatting the media image to be thin and

         13  that's the only way to be cool, is to be thin.

         14                 I have heard some, including today,

         15  in the food industry arguing that kids need more

         16  exercise, not fewer food choices, but we should just

         17  imagine one issue here. Taking away choices and

         18  giving consistent messages is very important.

         19                 We strongly feel that these kids have

         20  outlined in the focus groups that we've conducted

         21  what they want are simple and consistent messages.

         22                 We've also held focus groups with

         23  parents, and the same has come forth from the

         24  parents. They want consistent, simple messages, and

         25  that consistency in the school carries over.

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I just

          4  wanted to say, you all had -- I wasn't able to make

          5  it, unfortunately, I had hoped to come, but what I

          6  heard was a really terrific event at Chelsea Piers

          7  trying to promote the work you're doing in nutrition

          8  and fitness.

          9                 MS. PENSIERO: It was a success.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, that's what I

         11  heard. So, apologies for not being there, but

         12  congratulations.

         13                 If Devin Mann would like to go next,

         14  that would be great. Devin, Raymond and Michelle.

         15                 DR. JAY: I'm actually speaking on

         16  behalf of Devin Mann and the group at Bellevue,

         17  internists, we are called PINRO, and we would like

         18  to thank the Chairwoman and the members of the

         19  Council for inviting us to speak today on a very

         20  important issue. PINRO stands for Physicians for

         21  Improved Nutrition and Reduced Obesity.

         22                 We are a group of Bellevue internists

         23  committed to fighting obesity and promoting

         24  healthier lifestyles through clinical interventions

         25  and health policy, and we are here to support the

                                                            141

          1  COMMITTEES ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH

          2  bill, obviously.

          3                 Obesity is an epidemic, and over 30

          4  percent of American are obese, and this epidemic

          5  disproportionally affects our minority underserved

          6  patients.

          7                 Obese individuals invariably suffer

          8  from chronic disease, as you've heard throughout the

          9  day, and overweight children are more likely to

         10  become obese adults. This act is an important first

         11  step in the prevention of obesity, leading the way

         12  for progressive future legislation.

         13                 In New York State, 68 percent of

         14  blacks and 52 percent of Hispanics are overweight,

         15  and to address this problem we have recently started

         16  a weight management clinic at Bellevue, and this is

         17  the first such program at a public hospital.

         18                 One of our patients who I would like

         19  to tell you about, her name is Serina, and she

         20  joined our clinic about four months ago and her

         21  experience is very typical.

         22                 She is a 32-year-old Latino woman, as

         23  a child she was overweight and she continued gaining

         24  weight through adolescents, she's now obese and

         25  suffers from high blood pressure, back pain and
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          2  arthritis, and most recently, unfortunately, she was

          3  diagnosed with diabetes.

          4                 Both of her children are overweight

          5  and they're at risk for developing these same

          6  diseases.

          7                 Serina's health problems classically

          8  occur in people much older, but we now see them

          9  commonly in young patients. The costs of overweight

         10  and obesity and our associated health problems in

         11  the United States is $93 billion a year. Medicare

         12  and Medicaid finance half of these costs.

         13                 Excess weight in childhood

         14  adolescents predicts obesity in adults. Overweight

         15  adolescents have a 70 percent chance of becoming

         16  overweight or obese adults, and like Serina, our

         17  patients learn their habits during childhood and

         18  it's difficult to change these behaviors.

         19                 Further, they lack the knowledge of

         20  basic nutrition needed to provide healthy

         21  alternatives to the high calorie, minimally

         22  nutritious soft drinks and fastfood as their

         23  children are accustomed to eating.

         24                 The Junk Food and Soda-Free Schools

         25  Act represents a first step to decrease obesity in
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          2  children and adults, but there is a lot more to do.

          3                 Future legislation should strengthen

          4  nutrition education programs in the schools and the

          5  community so that children and adults can make

          6  healthy choices.

          7                 We need to increase the availability

          8  of fruits and vegetables in poor communities through

          9  public and private partnerships, and, finally,

         10  physical education needs to be revitalized as well.

         11                 As internists who work with minority

         12  patients, we treat obesity and its associated

         13  diseases every day.

         14                 Many of our patients have been obese

         15  since childhood and their own children are at risk.

         16                 We hope that this bill will be

         17  embraced by the City Council and future legislation

         18  will continue to target the causes of obesity.

         19                 The fight against obesity needs to

         20  occur, not only in the doctor's office, but also in

         21  the schools and in the home, focusing on both the

         22  children and the parents.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you just

         24  restate your name again for the record.

         25                 DR. JAY: Sure. My name is Dr. Melanie
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          2  Jay, J-a-y.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Next we're going to hear from

          6  Raymond, please.

          7                 MR. FIGUEROA: Hello. Hi. Good

          8  afternoon. My name is Raymond Figueroa, Jr., I am

          9  with the Harlem Children Zone TRUCE Fitness and

         10  Nutrition Center. I am here registering our support

         11  for the Intro. 316.

         12                 Let me just begin initially, I wish

         13  to thank the Council members of the Committee on

         14  Education and the Committee on Health in particular,

         15  Council Members Yassky and Quinn, for their

         16  leadership in convening this hearing. Further, I

         17  wish to express my personal gratitude for being

         18  afforded the opportunity to come before you today.

         19  It indeed is a privilege to do so.

         20                 I'm just going to do the Readers

         21  Digest version here.

         22                 Recently young people from our

         23  program, the TRUCE Fitness and Nutrition Center, a

         24  group of young people from our program did a

         25  presentation this past spring on diabetes in our
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          2  community.

          3                 As a part of their research in

          4  preparing for this presentation, they consulted the

          5  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene's website

          6  where they uncovered some alarming statistics.

          7                 I will just cite them at the risk of

          8  being ad nauseam namely, the risk of type-2 diabetes

          9  for Central Harlem youth ages ten to 17 is 50

         10  percent higher than the Citywide rate, and the next

         11  demographic bracket up, 18 to 24 age bracket, the

         12  incidence of type-2 diabetes is double the Citywide

         13  rate. This is significant. Inasmuch as type-2 is

         14  very much a preventable disease.

         15                 This data graphically suggests that

         16  the disease is incubating during childhood years,

         17  and exploding in adulthood at that early adulthood.

         18  It is even more significant to note the reasons for

         19  this.

         20                 These young researchers from the

         21  TRUCE Fitness and Nutrition Center glean from a

         22  preliminary community nutrition mapping project they

         23  carried out the previous summer, that local

         24  commercial food establishments, restaurants,

         25  bodegas, supermarkets, et cetera, offer very limited
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          2  access to fresh foods, fresh vegetables and whole

          3  grains.

          4                 As a result of their ongoing

          5  participation in the Nutrition Education Program as

          6  TRUCE, they made the logical correlation consumption

          7  of such foods from these groups, along with regular

          8  physical exercise and dramatically reduced the risk

          9  of type-2 diabetes.

         10                 Incidentally, the reason why I'm

         11  taking pains to do this, we had young people here

         12  that couldn't be here. I wanted to cite some of

         13  their work because in point of fact, part of the

         14  success of our act is actively engaging the young

         15  people in developing strategies for addressing other

         16  issues in their community, the health issues

         17  confronting their community.

         18                 In view of what can now be regarded

         19  as conventional wisdom, the health of young people,

         20  particularly their nutritional status, has a direct

         21  bearing on their behavior and academic outcomes.

         22                 This joint committee and its

         23  oversight on nutrition and schools, should consider

         24  the following relevant factors and recommendations.

         25  I'm only going to abbreviate them.
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          2                 Community partnerships. Community

          3  partnerships between schools and local

          4  community-based organizations in the area of

          5  nutrition and health.

          6                 Beacon schools providing natural

          7  though not exclusive fit for this type of

          8  collaboration. It has been our experience as a CBO,

          9  that generally community-based organizations have a

         10  proven track record, and particularly strengths,

         11  with their compliment of support services and being

         12  able to engage you interactively in programmatic

         13  initiatives.

         14                 The young people organize a health

         15  fair, they did juicing, they started a gardening

         16  program as a result of their community nutrition

         17  mapping survey saying that they needed to grow their

         18  own vegetables.

         19                 They had a harvest festival, the

         20  parents cooked it, the kids had a wonderful time

         21  sampling what an experience it is to have fresh,

         22  tasty, and enjoyable food to eat.

         23                 Okay, thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Any

         25  questions for this panel?
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          2                 David.

          3                 Oh, I'm sorry. I'm sorry, Michelle.

          4  It's funny that I forgot you because I was thinking

          5  when she testifies I have to thank her for

          6  participating in the press conference we had earlier

          7  today at 10:30 where we definitely depleted people's

          8  electrolytes because it was like 900 degrees out

          9  there, and all of a sudden to say that you must be

         10  very committed to this issue because you have been

         11  here literally all day.

         12                 So, thank you. And I appreciate you

         13  having to take off work and make other child care

         14  arrangements or all of the things you clearly have

         15  had to do to be here all day.

         16                 MS. FUSARO: Thank you.

         17                 Good afternoon. My name is Michelle

         18  Fusaro. I'm here on behalf of the American Cancer

         19  Society, as a parent of a 14-year-old daughter who

         20  will be graduating from junior high school tomorrow.

         21                 I have volunteered to speak here

         22  today about a subject that is extremely close to my

         23  heart, and one that has been a source of much pain

         24  for my daughter, as well as myself over the past

         25  three years.
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          2                 My daughter is a lovely young woman,

          3  a member of ARISTA, the Principal's List, and will

          4  be attending Staten Island Tech in September.

          5                 However, she has been battling adult

          6  adolescent obesity that has become a major issue

          7  during her junior high school years.

          8                 We have tried every diet you can

          9  think of, gone to a nutritionist and joined Weight

         10  Watchers.

         11                 All of these efforts have been in

         12  vain, due to the fact that she has access every day

         13  at lunchtime to vending machines that sabotage any

         14  chance of weight loss.

         15                 While the selection in these machines

         16  is quite large, I do not believe that there are too

         17  many items of nutritional value in any of these

         18  machines.

         19                 These items range from ice cream,

         20  Snapple, potato chips and soda, that are known as

         21  "junk food."

         22                 As a result, every morning after

         23  waking up an hour early to prepare my child's lunch,

         24  making sure to include all the food groups, as well

         25  as bottled water, my child has succumbed to the
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          2  temptation and has purchased these items.

          3                 This is due to peer pressure, as well

          4  as having these machines strategically located in

          5  the lunchroom.

          6                 In addition, the menu offered on the

          7  school lunch program was not an option either. The

          8  items available were of little or no nutritional

          9  value, and were not conducive to any weight loss

         10  program.

         11                 While I'm not blaming the school

         12  entirely for my child's weight problem, I do feel

         13  that having these vending machines in junior high

         14  school has significantly added to her problem.

         15                 While she had a slight problem during

         16  her grammar school years, we were able to control

         17  it, and I believe that this was in part due to the

         18  fact that there were no vending machines in her

         19  grammar school.

         20                 In addition to health issues, a large

         21  portion of her allowance has been used for the

         22  purchase of cafeteria snacks. This money could have

         23  been used for entertainment purposes and savings for

         24  her future.

         25                 I have always considered school to be
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          2  a safe place for my child, a place where she could

          3  put to good use the qualities she has learned from

          4  home. With that being said, what better place to

          5  help reinforce the need for good nutrition.

          6                 I am well aware of the amount of

          7  income that these machines generate in schools.

          8  However, should our children's health suffer as a

          9  result?

         10                 Why not have machines with items such

         11  as yogurt, water, snacks with more nutritional

         12  value. With the emphasis on good health, my major

         13  concern is my child's well-being.

         14                 Her obesity may contribute to the

         15  possibility of other health-related problems, such

         16  as diabetes, cancer and in her case, polycystic

         17  ovarian syndrome.

         18                 This is in addition to the damage

         19  this has done to her self-confidence as a result of

         20  the weight problem.

         21                 As a concerned parent, I am strongly

         22  urging you to consider passing the Junk Food and

         23  Soda-Free School Act. We urge our children to make

         24  good choices concerning their health and well-being,

         25  and I see it a major step to the welfare of our
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          2  children to have the schools help us with this

          3  endeavor.

          4                 Thank you for allowing me the

          5  opportunity to speak on this very sensitive issue.

          6  While it may be a little late for my child, I would

          7  like to thank that I could help make a difference

          8  for other children in the future.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Council Member Yassky.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, first

         13  off, since this is the last panel, Chair Quinn, I

         14  just want to thank you again, and commend you again

         15  for your leadership in holding this hearing.

         16                 I think, you know, again, despite

         17  what one witness said, you know, a knee-jerk

         18  solution here, there has been an extraordinary

         19  amount of work done on the question of obesity,

         20  childhood, teenage obesity, by the academic and

         21  medical community, and we've been able to showcase

         22  just a little portion of it here. But I think the

         23  truth is there is quite a bit of work that's been

         24  done and we know some of what we need to do, and no

         25  one is saying it's a simple thing to fix, but we
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          2  know some of what we need to do, and I think what we

          3  talk about today is one step here.

          4                 I just wanted to thank Ms. Fusaro

          5  for, I know it's always difficult to come and talk

          6  about one's own family in a setting like this, so I

          7  take my hat off to you for your courage, your

          8  willingness to do it, and it's just enormously

          9  valuable for somebody like you to come and put a

         10  personal face on the numbers and the statistics as

         11  compelling as they are. It helps to think of it, it

         12  helps, I find for me very much, I know for other

         13  Council members, to think of it in terms of an

         14  individual person. And, you know, what you've

         15  struggled with is a complex thing, and, again, I

         16  really give you credit for not saying that soda and

         17  vending machines isn't the problem, period, it's

         18  complicated. But you're saying you need some help

         19  and what you want is for the schools to work with

         20  you as a parent, and I think that's our job, is to

         21  work with you as a parent trying to help your child

         22  be healthy.

         23                 So, I'm committed to doing whatever I

         24  can to make sure that happens.

         25                 Thank you for coming today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all. And

          3  in addition, thank those of you particularly as it

          4  relates to your patients and from the Harlem

          5  Children Zone and from Strang, in addition to Ms.

          6  Fusaro. You know, it's hard to get kids down to

          7  these hearings, they're in school, some of them even

          8  graduating in the next couple days, but I think your

          9  panel was helpful, at least beginning the voices for

         10  the children who are impacted by this to be heard,

         11  which, of course, is the most important thing. And

         12  that said, this oversight hearing, the first hearing

         13  on Intro. 316 is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 2:28 p.m.)
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